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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

The report on fiscal 2010 is
very

similar to the
past

several
years

our industry continues to be mired in sales slump that can be

directly correlated to the demise of the residential housing

industry Despite the challenging environment however Bassett

made good progress in strengthening its balance sheet and

positioning the Company to return to growth and profitability

While we have yet to experience significant industry-wide sales

improvement we do believe that we have bottomed out and that

our full attention needs to turn to improving our top line and

leveraging our existing cost structure

Net sales for 2010 increased 1% to $235 million While the sales

growth was small we view it as significant in the context of five

successive years of decline The Company recorded net loss of

$2.0 million for the year as compared to loss of $22.7 million

in fiscal 2009 Once again there were significant charges for

bad debts and restructuring items in both
years

that are detailed

within this report However we were able to generate positive

operating cash flow for the second
year

in row and significantly

reduce our outstanding debt load

As you know the Company aligns its operations into two

segments wholesale and retail Wholesale sales for 2010 declined

2% to $176 million It is worth noting that adjusted for the

volume represented by our now closed fiberboard operation

our wholesale revenue did grow slightly last year Upholstery

shipments comprised 55% and wood shipments 44% of the total

In May we reopened production facility in Newton N.C to

manufacture opening price point upholstery We were quite

pleased with the retail sales that this product line produced and

we are adding additional SKUs in 2011 For 2010 the upholstery

division increased sales by 11% and operating profit was slightly

ahead of last year

While our wood division sales dropped by 8% during 2010

excluding the effects of the fiberboard plant closure good

expense control increased operating profit by 13% Rising costs

associated with the maturing Chinese economy has recently

forced us to re-examine our sourcing network We have moved

more of our casegoods production to Vietnam and will continue

this trend in 2011 On the domestic front our Martinsville Table

Plant expanded its assortment with the upscale Seville Dining

Program In general the wood segment remains the most

difficult from sales perspective We continue to challenge our

wood product mix and pricing strategies as we seek to stem the

sales attrition that this area of our business has experienced for

the past several years

Once again our retail segment was presented with an ambitious

assignment that included assimilating 11 licensee stores into our

corporate network reopening store that was previously closed

opening one brand new store and closing two underperforming

corporate stores Amidst this activity we were able to expand gross

profit margins by 100 basis points and reduce total retail losses by

9% For the 27 stores that were comparable to the 2009 footprint

losses were reduced by 41% While we will acquire the operations

of several more licensee stores in 2011 this pace has begun to

slow We look forward to focusing our full attention to operating

stable fleet of corporate stores without the distractions of the

takeover process that has characterized our operations during the

recession

Along those lines the overall health of our licensee store network

merits discussion Because of the aforementioned corporate

takeovers and few closings our licensed store count reduced

from 68 stores at the end of 2009 to 54 stores at the end of 2010

We will remain aggressive in 2011 in rationalizing our licensee

store community down to the group that is capable of fulfilling

their obligations to Bassett Although significantly smaller than

2009 our bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges for

our licensee network were $6.6 million in 2010 Without this

expense the Company would have produced an operating profit

We have many good licensees who do great job selling our

products representing our brand and generating return for

their individual entities We continue to work towards making

sure that 100% of our licensed network fits this criteria

The Company has
spent the past five years coping with the effects

of the dramatic loss in volume that resulted from the housing

industry debacle and the accompanying economic crisis And

although no one knows for sure it appears that the aggregate

demand for home furnishings related products in the United States

has been permanently impaired In any event we do not expect

to see return to the pre-crisis consumer purchasing appetite

any time soon Nevertheless management believes that due to

leaner cost structure improving prospects in our upholstery

division and higher degree of operational competency in our

retail division that there is reason to approach 2011 and beyond

with sense of optimism Admittedly these positive sentiments

are tempered by the scars of the past few years The Company

must now focus all of its energies on gaining market share and on

the solid execution of its strategies to further rebuild shareholder

value

would like to thank our shareholders Board of Directors our

1300 associates and our customers for their support of Bassett

in 2010

Robert Spilman Jr

President CEO



INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Net Sales $235254 $232722 $288298

Net Loss 2002 22699 40355

PER SHARE DATA

Diluted Loss Per Share $0.17 $l.99 $3.46

Cash Dividends Per Share 1.50

Book Value Per Share 9.20 9.63 11.40

BALANCE SHEET DATA

NAN CIAL
SUMMARY
Fiscal Years Ended November

2010 2009 2008

Cash $11071 $2322 $3777

Investments 15111 14931 35060

Total Assets 197317 216229 243825

Long-Term Debt 4295 31953 40346

Stockholders Equity 106305 110334 130179

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In thousands except share and per share data

Overview

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated together with its consolidated subsidiaries Bassett we
our or the Company based in Bassett Va is leading retailer manufacturer and marketer of branded home

furnishings Our products are sold primarily through network of licensee- and Company-owned branded stores

under the Bassett Home Furnishings BHF or store or Bassett Furniture Direct BFD or store name

with additional distribution through other multi-line furniture stores many of which feature Bassett galleries or

design centers Bassettbaby cribs and casegoods as well as certain upholstery products are sold through

specialty stores and mass merchants We were founded in 1902 and incorporated under the laws of Virginia in

1930 Our rich 108-year history has instilled the principles of quality value and integrity in everything that we

do while simultaneously providing us with the expertise to respond to ever-changing consumer tastes and to

meet the demands of global economy

Our store program was created in 1997 as single source home furnishings retail store that provides

unique combination of stylish well-made furniture and accessories with high level of customer service This

service includes complimentary room planning in-home design visits fast delivery and custom-order furniture

This strategy both builds on our strengths brand name balance sheet and product offerings and better positions

us to capitalize on the changing furniture retail environment Our store network included 54 licensee-owned

stores and 47 Company-owned and operated stores at November 27 2010 During 2010 we acquired total of

eleven licensee stores in Maryland Missouri Illinois New York Alabama Mississippi California Delaware

and North Carolina We also opened two additional stores in the second quarter of 2010 one new store in

Virginia and re-opened store in New Jersey that was closed in 2008 by former licensee We closed our Mt

Pleasant South Carolina store in March 2010 as the result of an eminent domain condemnation for which we

have received full settlement from the state In addition two licensee stores closed during the third quarter of

2010 We do not have any real estate investments lease obligations or lease guarantee exposures with respect to

these two stores Also in the fourth quarter of 2010 we closed our store in Fairview Heights Missouri As we

had previously recorded sufficient reserves with respect to our lease obligations at that location we did not incur

any additional significant charges as result of this closure Other store closures are possible during 2011 that

could result in lease exit charges or increases in our lease and loan guarantee reserves

The following table summarizes the changes in store count during fiscal 2010

November 28 New Stores Stores November 27
2009 Stores Acquired Closed 2010

Licensee-owned stores 68 II 54

Company-owned stores 36 11 47

Total 104 101

Our wholesale operations include an upholstery plant in Newton North Carolina that produces wide
range

of upholstered furniture We believe that we are an industry leader with our quick-ship custom upholstery

offerings We also operate custom dining manufacturing facility in Martinsville Va Most of our wood

furniture and certain of our upholstery offerings are sourced through several foreign plants primarily in China

and Vietnam We define imported product as fully finished product that is sourced internationally For fiscal

2010 approximately 53% of our wholesale sales were of imported product compared to 51% for fiscal 2009

Overall conditions for our industry and our Company have been difficult over the past several
years

although we have seen some slight improvement during 2010 Nevertheless we have continued to face

significant economic pressures as new housing starts remain down and consumers continue to be faced with

general economic uncertainty fueled by continuing high unemployment These conditions have significantly
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limited the resumption of growth for big ticket consumer purchases such as furniture Consequently this has

put pressure on certain of our dealers ability to generate adequate profits to fully pay us for the furniture we have

sold to them As result we incurred significantly increased bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges

during fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 of $6567 $15205 and $11769 respectively Although management will

continue to work closely with our licensees to ensure the success of both the licensee and Bassett further store

closures are possible during 2011 and beyond that could result in lease exit charges or increases in our lease and

loan guarantee reserves We also may increase the number of Company-owned stores during 2011 primarily

through acquisitions of certain licensee-owned stores as well as limited number of new store openings in

selected markets

Maintenance of strong balance sheet is stated management goal and is vital to our retail strategy The

store program entails key business risks including the realization of receivables and the coverage of both direct

and contingent liabilities primarily associated with retail real estate We have established decision criteria and

business disciplines aimed at minimizing potential losses from these risks

Given the difficult and somewhat unprecedented environment we have taken several important actions

which have improved our results and liquidity These include

Aggressively working with certain licensees to take over or close those stores that are underperforming

resulting in reduced exposure in our accounts receivable

Optimizing our inventory levels to improve working capital and cash flow while striving to attain

satisfactory service levels to our retail distribution channels including both Company-owned stores and

licensees Inventory reductions added significantly to operating cash flow through the second quarter of

2010 We increased our investment in inventory during the third quarter of 2010 by $7.3 million in order

to improve service levels Inventory levels remained stable during the fourth quarter of 2010

Right-sizing our expense structure in our corporate retail segment resulting in reduction of selling

general and administrative expenses as percentage of net sales after excluding the effect of newly-

added retail stores

Implementing cost containment measures in our wholesale segment which have reduced fixed

overhead and SGA expenses to improve our operating margins

Suspending our quarterly dividend

Delaying certain capital expenditures

We will also continue to work diligently with our network of licensees to improve their operating results

With the existing and planned improvements in our retail program and our strong balance sheet we believe we

are well positioned not only to survive these turbulent times but also to gain market share as some of our

competitors exit the industry

As we continually monitor our business relationships with our licensees we may determine from time to

time that it is in our best interest to acquire licensees operations in order to mitigate certain risks associated

with the poor performance or potential failure of licensee Such risks include loss of receivables or underlying

collateral potential impairment of the value of our investments in real estate used by licensee or exposure to

contingent liabilities under lease guarantees and potential harm to our market share and brand integrity within

licensees market In addition we are sometimes approached by our licensees to acquire all or certain stores

operated by the licensee We evaluate such opportunities considering among other things the viability of the

market and our participation in the store real estate
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Analysis of Operations

Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to November 30 which periodically results in 53-week year

Fiscal 2008 contained 53 weeks Net sales gross profit selling general and administrative SGA expense and

operating loss were as follows for the
years

ended November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and November 29

2008

2010 2009 2008

Net sales $235254 100.0% $232722 100.0% $288298 100.0%

Gross profit 112688 47.9% 102840 44.2% 114899 39.9%

SGA 110808 47.1% 103789 44.6% 116576 40.4%

Bad debt and notes receivable

valuation charges 6567 2.8% 15205 6.5% 11769 4.1%

Unusual charges gains net 488 -2% 3794 1.6% 3008 1.0%

Loss from operations 4199 -1.8% $19948 -8% $16454 -5.6%

Sales for fiscal 2010 were $235254 as compared to $232722 for 2009 and $288298 for 2008 representing

increases decreases of 1.1% and 19.8% respectively These trends are primarily due to continued soft

furniture retail conditions which have impacted both retail sales and wholesale shipments in all three years

although in 2010 we began to see some improvement in these conditions Our consolidated net sales by segment

were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Wholesale $176255 $179534 $242094

Retail 122241 105378 97176

Inter-company elimination 63242 52190 50972

Consolidated net sales $235254 $232722 $288298

Gross margins for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 were 47.9% 44.2% and 39.9% respectively The margin

increases result primarily from greater mix of sales being through the retail segment as well as improved

margins in both the wholesale and retail segments Selling general and administrative expenses excluding bad

debt and notes receivable valuation charges increased $7019 in 2010 as compared to 2009 primarily due to the

increase in the number of retail stores Selling general and administrative expenses excluding bad debt and

notes receivable valuation charges decreased $12787 in 2009 as compared to 2008 due to the reduction of

administrative overhead and general trend toward lower spending Bad debt and notes receivable valuation

charges decreased $8638 in 2010 from 2009 levels due to our efforts to work diligently with the licensees to

control increases in accounts and notes receivable exposure In addition many of the distressed licensee-owned

stores for which significant bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges were required in 2009 have since

been acquired by us and are now run as company-owned stores Bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges

increased by $3436 in 2009 over 2008 as the deepening effects of the recession continued to put increasing

pressure on the profitability and cash flow of our licensees

Our operating loss in 2010 is primarily due to continuing elevated bad debt charges in our wholesale

segment and operating losses incurred by our retail segment These retail operating losses reflect both the

continuing weakness in the home furnishings retail environment the shortfall between the amount of sales

required to breakeven on an average per store basis and the amount of sales that were actually written and

delivered and costs associated with the acquisition and stabilization of distressed licensee stores However in

2010 we did see significant reduction in the amount of bad debt charges taken at the wholesale level and we

have begun to see slight improvement in the retail environment We continue to take actions to improve per store

sales performance including adding new value-oriented product offerings strengthening our design and sales
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talent and incorporating elements of the new store prototype
into more of our stores In addition we are closing

underperforming stores that we do not believe will be able to meet their required breakeven sales levels In the

recently acquired stores it has generally taken six to twelve months of operations by corporate retail

management to either implement the changes necessary to improve performance in these stores or to make final

determination regarding their on-going viability In our wholesale segment we have reduced the cost and

expense structure to reflect this lower level of sales and the reduced number of stores in the total network

Certain items affecting comparability between periods are noted below in Investment and Real Estate

Segment and Other Items Affecting Net Loss

Our operating results were negatively or positively impacted by certain restructuring and non-recurring

items as detailed below

2010 2009 2008

Income from Continued Dumping Subsidy Offset Act $488 1627 $2 122

Restructuring impaired asset charges and unusual gains net

Impairment of goodwill 532 3548

Impairment of leasehold improvements 1068 624

Impairment of other intangibles 240

Asset impairment charge associated with plant closures 485

Supply contract termination costs associated with fiberboard plant closure 408

Severance 494

Gain on sale of the company airplane 1342
Lease exit costs 2434 642

Proxy defense costs 1418

$488 3794 3008

Fiscal 2010

Income from the Continued Dumping Subsidy Offset Act CDSOA continued to decline in 2010 from

prior years due to legislation enacted in 2006 that ends CDSOA distributions for monies collected after

September 30 2007 although distributions of monies collected prior to that date have continued during 2008

2009 and 2010 final distribution of the CDSOA funds is expected to be made in late 2011 however it has not

been determined what our share of that distribution will be if any

Fiscal 2009

In 2009 we recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of $1068 for the write-off of the remaining

leasehold improvements for our Arlington Texas and Alpharetta Georgia retail stores as well as the closure of

our retail office in Greensboro North Carolina Also included in that amount was non-cash charge to write-

down the carrying value of our long-lived assets associated with an underperforming retail location

We recorded non-cash charges of $2434 for lease exit costs related to the closure of the leased facilities

noted above see also Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion

We recorded non-cash charge of $532 for the write-off of goodwill associated with store acquisitions in

2008 see also Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion

We recorded $485 non-cash charge to write-down the value of the property and equipment as result of

the fiberboard plant closure in the fourth quarter of 2009 In addition we recorded $408 charge associated with

the termination of power supply contract for the fiberboard plant
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Lastly we recorded severance charges of $320 associated with reduction in workforce announced in

March 2009 and $174 associated with the fiberboard plant closure

Fiscal 2008

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 we recorded $3548 charge for the impairment of goodwill related

to our wholesale reporting unit see also Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion

We also recorded an additional impairment charge of $240 related to other intangibles During fiscal 2008 we

also recorded $624 charge to write-off the leasehold improvements and $642 charge for lease exit costs

related to the closure of corporate retail store As part of our cost-cutting efforts we sold our former airplane

for $2092 and recorded gain of $1342 Finally we incurred legal and other expenses of $1418 related to the

proxy contest with Costa Brava Partnership III L.P during the second quarter of fiscal 2008

Segment Information

We have strategically aligned our business into three reportable segments as described below

Wholesale The wholesale home furnishings segment is involved principally in the design

manufacture sourcing sale and distribution of furniture products to network of Bassett stores

licensee-owned stores and Company-owned retail stores and independent furniture retailers Our

wholesale segment includes our wood and upholstery operations as well as all corporate selling

general and administrative expenses including those corporate expenses related to both Company- and

licensee-owned stores We eliminate the sales between our wholesale and retail segments as well as the

imbedded profit in the retail inventory for the consolidated presentation in our financial statements

RetailCompany-owned Stores Our retail segment consists of Company-owned stores and includes

the revenues expenses assets and liabilities including real estate and capital expenditures directly

related to these stores

Investments and Real Estate Our investments and real estate segment consists of our investments in

marketable securities our investment in the Fortress Value Recovery Fund LLC Fortress

formerly known as the DB Zwirn Special Opportunities Fund previously held as an investment within

the Bassett Industries Alternative Asset Fund LP Alternative Asset Fund equity investments in

IHFC and Zenith and retail real estate related to licensee stores Although this segment does not have

operating earnings income from the segment is included in other income loss net in our condensed

consolidated statements of income and retained earnings

In fiscal 2008 we requested our general partner in the Alternative Asset Fund Private Advisors

L.L.C to attempt to liquidate all of our investments in the fund During fiscal 2009 and 2008 we

received $19258 and $23250 respectively for liquidations associated with various investments in the

Alternative Asset Fund As of November 28 2009 the Alternative Asset Fund held only $749

investment in Fortress along with some remaining cash that was distributed in early 2010 Due to the

level of the remaining assets in the Alternative Asset Fund the Company and Private Advisors L.L.C

dissolved the partnership effective December 31 2009 and the Alternative Asset Funds remaining

investment interest in Fortress was transferred to the Company
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Wholesale Segment

Net sales gross profit selling general and administrative SGA expense and operating income loss for

our Wholesale Segment were as follows for the years ended November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and

November 29 2008

2010 2009 2008

Net sales $176255 IOftO% $179534 100AJ% $242094 100.0%

Gross profit 55010 31.2% 53225 29.6% 70940 29.3%

SGA 46012 26.1% 47120 26.2% 62276 25.7%

Bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges 6567 3.7% 15205 8.5% 11769 4.9%

Income loss from operations 2431 1.4% 9100 -5.1% 3105 -1.3%

Wholesale shipments by category for the last three fiscal years are summarized below

2010 2009 2008

Wood 77326 43.9% 89428 49.8% $128678 53.2%

Upholstery 97258 55.2% 87652 48.8% 109944 45.4%

Other 1671 0.9% 2454 1.4% 3472 1.4%

Total $176255 100.0% $179534 100.0% $242094 lOftO%

Fiscal 2010 as Compared to Fiscal 2009

Net sales for the wholesale segment were $176255 for 2010 as compared to $179534 for decrease of

1.8% Excluding sales of fiberboard product the production of which was discontinued in late 2009 wholesale

shipments increased by 1.1% over 2009 This increase in shipments was indicative of slightly improving market

conditions particularly in the latter part of 2010 In addition shipments during the first half of 2010 were

adversely affected by delays in receiving imported product from certain of our overseas suppliers In an effort to

mitigate the stock outages caused by these delays and improve service levels to our customers we began to

increase inventory levels during the second and third quarters of 2010 As result we were able to substantially

eliminate the excess backlog of delayed shipments during the final quarter of the year Approximately 53% and

51% of wholesale shipments during 2010 and 2009 respectively were imported products

Gross margins for the wholesale segment were 1.2% for 2010 as compared to 29.6% for 2009 This

increase is due to improved margins on the imported wood and upholstery products as well as the closure of the

fiberboard plant during the fourth quarter of 2009 which essentially operated at breakeven gross profit during

2009 partially offset by the introduction of lower cost upholstery line that has slightly lower margin and

higher freight costs on imported product during the fourth quarter of 2010 Wholesale SGA expense excluding

bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges declined $1108 or 2.4% for 2010 as compared to 2009 due

primarily to lower spending due to lower sales and continued cost cutting measures We recorded $6567 of bad

debt and notes receivable valuation charges in 2010 as compared to $15205 for 2009 This significant decrease

in charges is primarily due to our efforts to work diligently with the licensees to control increases in accounts and

notes receivable exposure In addition many of the distressed licensee-owned stores for which significant bad

debt and notes receivable valuation charges were required in 2009 have since been acquired by us and are now

run as company-owned stores

Fiscal 2009 as Compared to Fiscal 2008

Net sales for the wholesale segment were $179534 for fiscal 2009 as compared to $242094 for fiscal 2008

decrease of 25.8% Gross margins for the wholesale segment were 29.6% for fiscal 2009 as compared to 29.3%

for fiscal 2008 This increase is primarily due to increased margins on our upholstered furniture due to its custom
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nature largely offset by lower realized margins on our wood furniture and certain discount programs designed to

sell more furniture Upholstered furniture also comprised 48.8% of our total shipments in fiscal 2009 as

compared to 45.4% in fiscal 2008 Wholesale SGA excluding bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges

decreased $15156 for fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal 2008 due primarily to decrease in wholesale spending

due to lower sales and continued cost cutting measures We recorded $15205 of bad debt and notes receivable

valuation charges for fiscal 2009 as compared to $11769 during fiscal 2008 as our licensees have struggled to

pay
for the furniture shipped to them in this prolonged and severe recessionary environment In addition fiscal

2009 included an additional $1936 in bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges related to periods prior to

2009 as result of the change in accounting policies and processes pursuant to our restatement of Form l0-Q for

the quarter ended February 28 2009 See Note to the consolidated financial statements included under Item

of this Form 10-K

Wholesale Backlog

The dollar value of our wholesale backlog representing orders received but not yet delivered to dealers and

Company stores as of November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and November 29 2008 was as follows

2010 2009 2008

Year end wholesale backlog $12451 $10301 $13967

Retail SegmentCompany Owned Stores

Net sales gross profit selling general and administrative SGA expense and operating income loss for

our Retail Segment were as follows for the years ended November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and

November 29 2008

2008

_______ _______ 97176 100.0%

44516 45.8%

________ ________
54822 56.4%

_______ _______ $10306 -10.6%

The following tables present operating results on comparable store basis for each comparative set of

periods Table compares the results of the 27 stores that were open and operating for all of 2010 and 2009

Table compares the results of the 26 stores that were open and operating for all of 2009 and 2008

Comparable Store Results

2009 2009 2008

______
$86131 100.0% $80846 100.0% $84976 100.0%

40838 47.4% 38104 47.1% 39934 47.0%

______
46279 53.7% 43268 53.5% 47369 55.7%

______
$5441 -6.3% $5l64 -6.4% $7435 -8.7%

2010

Net sales $122241 100.0%

Gross profit 58628 48.0%

SGA 66015 54.0%

Loss from operations 7387 -6.0%

2009

$105378 100.0%

49550 47.0%

57681 54.7%

8131 -7.7%

Table 2010 vs 2009 27 Stores

2010

Net sales $82063 lOftO%

Gross profit 40081 48.8%

SGA expense 43288 527%

Loss from operations 3207 -3.9%

Table 2009 vs 2008 26 Stores
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The following tables present operating results for all other stores which were not comparable year-over-

year each table including the results of stores that either opened or closed at some point during the 24 months of

each comparative set of periods

All Other Non-Comparable Store Results

Table 2010 vs 2009 All Other Stores Table 2009 vs 2008 All Other Stores

2010 2009 2009 2008

Net sales $40178 lOftO% $19247 100.0% $24532 100.0% $12200 lOftO%

Grossprofit 18547 46.2% 8712 45.3% 11446 46.7% 4582 37.6%

SGAexpense 22727 56.6% 11402 59.3% 14413 58.8% 7453 61.1%

Loss from operations $4180 -1OA% $2690 -14.0% $2967 -12.1% $2871 -23.5%

Fiscal 2010 as Compared to Fiscal 2009

Our Company-owned stores had sales of $122241 in 2010 as compared to $105378 in 2009 an increase of

16% The increase was comprised of $20931 increase from the net addition of seventeen stores since the end of

fiscal 2008 partially offset by $4068 or 4.7% decrease in comparable store sales While we do not recognize

sales until goods are delivered to the customer we track written sales the dollar value of sales orders taken

rather than delivered as key store performance indicator Written sales for comparable stores during 2010

decreased 1.3% from 2009 The smaller decline in written sales relative to the larger decline in delivered sales at

comparable stores reflects improved market conditions in the latter half of 2010 as compared with weaker

conditions in late 2009 which adversely impacted our shipping rates during the first quarter of 2010

Gross margins for 2010 increased 1.0 percentage point compared to 2009 due to improved pricing and

promotional strategies and improved clearance margins SGA expense increased $8334 from 2009 comprised

of an increase of $11325 resulting from the net addition of retail stores partially offset by decline of $2991 at

comparable stores due to lower sales levels and continued cost containment efforts On comparable store basis

SGA decreased 1.0 percentage point as percentage of sales for 2010 as compared with 2009 and our

operating loss was reduced by 41.1% to $3207 In all other stores the operating loss was $4180 or 10.4% of

sales This higher level of operating losses reflects the fact that several of the acquired stores were struggling or

failing at the time of acquisition It has generally taken six to twelve months of operations by corporate retail

management to either implement the changes necessary to improve performance in the acquired stores or to make

final determination regarding their on-going viability

Fiscal 2009 as Compared to Fiscal 2008

Our Company-owned stores had sales of $105378 in 2009 as compared to $97176 in 2008 an increase of

8.4% The increase was comprised of $12332 increase from the net addition of four stores since the end of

fiscal 2008 partially offset by $4130 or 4.9% decrease in comparable store sales Written sales for comparable

stores during 2009 decreased 6.1% from 2008

Gross margins for fiscal 2009 increased 1.2 percentage points due to improved pricing and promotional

strategies partially offset by reduced margins from our inventory reduction sale during the third quarter of 2009

SGA increased $2859 primarily due to corporate store acquisitions partially offset by continued cost

containment efforts On comparable store basis SGA decreased 2.2 percentage points as percentage of sales

for 2009 as compared with 2008 and our operating loss was reduced by 30.5% to $5164

Retail Backlog

The dollar value of our retail backlog representing orders received but not yet delivered to customers as of

November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and November 29 2008 was as follows

2010 2009 2008

Year end retail backlog $13689 $8687 $9040

Retail backlog per open store 291 241 292
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Investment and Real Estate Segment and Other Items Affecting Net Income Loss

Although our Investment and Real Estate segment does not have operating earnings income from the

segment is included in income from investments in our consolidated statements of operations Our equity

investment in IHFC is not included in the identifiable assets of this segment since it is included in the long-term

liabilities section of our consolidated balance sheet Other income and expense items for fiscal 2010 2009 and

2008 are as follows

2010 2009 2008

Loss from Alternative Asset Fund $2730 $5385

Income from marketable securities 2272 764 1447

Other than temporary impairment of investments 1255 3296
Income from unconsolidated affiliated companies net 4700 5067 6300

Interest expense 2870 3699 4021
Loan and lease guarantee expense 1407 2834 527
Other 704 182 1474

Other income loss net $1991 $4505 $6956

Historically our marketable securities have been held by two different money managers and consisted of

combination of equity and fixed income securities including money market funds During the second quarter of

2009 we liquidated our equity holdings with one of the managers and reinvested the proceeds in various money

market funds individual bonds and bond funds During the first quarter of 2010 we liquidated the equity

holdings with the other manager and reinvested those funds in money market accounts As result we

recognized gains of $2272 during 2010 which included $1913 of gains and $21 of losses previously recorded in

other comprehensive income

The Alternative Asset Fund recorded loss of $2730 for fiscal 2009 as compared to loss of $5385 in fiscal

2008 In fiscal 2008 we requested our general partner in the Alternative Asset Fund Private Advisors L.L.C to

attempt to liquidate all of our investments in the fund During fiscal 2009 and 2008 we received $19258 and

$23250 respectively for liquidations associated with various investments in the Alternative Asset Fund As of

November 28 2009 the Alternative Asset Fund held only $749 investment in Fortress along with some

remaining cash that was distributed in early 2010 Due to the level of the remaining assets in the Alternative Asset

Fund the Company and Private Advisors L.L.C dissolved the partnership effective December 31 2009 and the

Alternative Asset Funds remaining investment interest in Fortress was transferred to the Company

We review our marketable securities to determine whether decline in fair value of security below the

cost basis is other than temporary Should the decline be considered other than temporary we write down the

cost basis of the security and include the loss in current earnings as opposed to recording an unrealized holding

loss Due to the decline in the financial markets during fiscal 2008 and into the first quarter of fiscal 2009 many

of our holdings sustained significant losses Consequently we recorded $1255 and $3296 in other than

temporary losses in our consolidated statement of operations in fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 respectively

Income from unconsolidated affiliated companies net includes income from our investment in IHFC as well

as income loss from our equity method investment in Zenith We recognized income loss from IHFC and

Zenith

2010 2009 2008

IHFC $4535 $4705 $6424

Zenith 165 362 124

$4700 $5067 $6300



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Continued

In thousands except share and
per

share data

Loan and lease guarantee expense consists of adjustments to our reserves for the net amount of our

estimated losses on loan and lease guarantees that we have entered into on behalf of our licensees We recognized

expense of $1407 $2834 and $527 for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively to reflect the changes in our

estimates of the additional risk that we may have to assume the underlying obligations with respect to our

guarantees

Other for fiscal 2009 includes income of $2284 associated with the receipt of death benefits from life

insurance policies associated with our Supplemental Executive Retirement Income Plan partially offset by costs

and expenses related to our real estate investments that support our licensees

Provision for Income taxes

We recorded an income tax provision benefit of $206 $l754 and $16945 in fiscal 2010 2009 and

2008 The benefit recognized in fiscal 2010 arose primarily as result of the lapse of the statute of limitations on

unrecognized state tax benefits partially offset by the accrual of income taxes to be paid in certain states and

penalties associated with certain unrecognized tax benefits The benefit recognized in fiscal 2009 resulted from

our utilization of additional net operating loss carrybacks as provided by the Worker Homeownership and

Business Assistance Act of 2009 which extended the general carryback period for 2008 NOLs from two years to

up to five Fiscal 2008 includes charge of $23383 to establish valuation allowance against substantially all of

our deferred tax assets as result of the cumulative losses incurred in fiscal 2008 and 2007 Our effective income

tax rates are 9.2% 7.l% and 72.3% for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Excluding the charge to

record valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets our effective rate would have been 25.9% in fiscal

2008 The effective rate for all three years was favorably impacted by exclusions for dividends received from our

investment in IHFC and unfavorably impacted in fiscal 2009 and 2008 by the write-offs of goodwill

See also Note 12 Income Taxes to the consolidated financial statements for full reconciliation of the

effective income tax rate for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We are committed to maintaining strong balance sheet in order to weather the current difficult industry

conditions to allow us to take advantage of opportunities as market conditions improve and to execute our long-

term retail strategies

Due to the continued housing slump and deterioration in the major financial markets and the overall

recessionary economic environment consumer spending has decreased resulting in significant financial losses

for us and damaging the ability of certain of our licensees to generate sufficient cash flow in their businesses

During fiscal 2009 we implemented measures to reduce operating expenses and improve working capital to

enhance our cash flow and have continued to carefully manage our cost structure and working capital throughout

fiscal 2010

The following table summarizes our quarterly cash flows from operations for fiscal 2010

Operating Cash Flow

2010

4th quarter 6091

3rd quarter 6817
2nd quarter 1843

1st quarter 6671

7788

10
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by used in operating activities was $7788 $4120 and $18955 for fiscal 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively

The increase in cash flow provided by operating activities for fiscal 2010 over fiscal 2009 is result of our

continued close management of operating expenses and working capital including some improvement in

collections on accounts receivable partially offset by planned build-up of inventory during the second and third

quarters of 2010 Operating cash flow during the third quarter of 2010 declined $8660 from the second quarter

of 2010 primarily due to our initiative to replenish our inventory of imported goods to remedy stock outages

experienced during the first half of 2010 In addition the stock outages we experienced had negative impact on

cash collections from our licensees during the third quarter which also contributed to the decline in operating

cash flow By the end of the fourth quarter of 2010 we had successfully restored our inventories to the levels

required to maintain the desired service levels to our customers resulting in improved deliveries and collections

during the final quarter of the year

Our overall cash position decreased during 2010 by $12150 primarily due to debt repayments of $23617

partially offset by our operational cash flow of $7788 and cash flows from investing activities of $3537 Cash

used in financing activities during 2010 included the repayment of the entire $15000 outstanding balance under

our revolving credit facility the repayment of the $3203 mortgage on the Mt Pleasant South Carolina property

the repayment of the $2380 balance on mortgage which matured on March 2010 principal payments of

$1075 in connection with the extension of two mortgages in December of 2009 plus other regularly scheduled

payments on our other mortgages and notes totaling $1959 These uses were partially offset by proceeds of $142

from the issuance of stock through our Employee Stock Purchase Plan Cash provided by investing activities of

$3537 during 2010 included proceeds of $4175 from the eminent domain settlement on our Mt Pleasant South

Carolina property and $937 from the resumption of dividend payments by IHFC partially offset by capital

expenditures of $2013 primarily related to the opening of two company stores In addition to the $11071 of

cash on-hand we have investments of 151 11 consisting of $14279 in bond and money market funds and

individual debt securities and $832 in Fortress With the current level of cash on-hand coupled with the

investment holdings and availability on the revolver we believe we have sufficient liquidity to fund operations

for the foreseeable future

Receivables and Inventory

Cash collections on our accounts and notes receivable have significant impact on our overall liquidity

While our cash flow from operations during fiscal 2009 was adversely affected by an increase in accounts

receivable before reserves due to the continued difficult environment at retail resulting in lower cash collections

this trend eased somewhat during 2010 However cash collections during the third quarter of 2010 were

adversely affected by delayed shipments due to stock outages Shipments improved significantly during the

fourth quarter and we had begun to see the expected resulting improvement in collections from our customers by

the end of the year

Our percentage of accounts receivable that are over 90 days past due has decreased from approximately

26% at November 28 2009 to approximately 23% at November 27 2010 We recorded $6567 of bad debt and

notes receivable valuation charges during 2010 as compared to $15205 during 2009 This significant decrease in

charges is primarily due to the Company working diligently with the licensees to better manage accounts and

notes receivable exposure as well as the takeover of certain licensees for which we had previously recorded

significant charges

In response to slow collections from certain of our licensees those licensees have been placed on

temporary cash before delivery program for current orders that is designed to prevent any
additional increase in

the accounts receivable exposure We expect the rate of cash collections to increase when the recessionary
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environment begins to subside such that our total receivables will begin to decrease The following table reflects

our accounts receivable and notes receivable and related bad debt reserves

November 27 November 28
2010 2009

Gross accounts receivable $38987 45362

Allowance for doubtful accounts 7366 10757

Net accounts receivable $31621 34605

Gross notes receivable $14914 19411

Allowance for doubtful accounts and discounts on notes receivable 6748 8950

Net notes receivable 8166 $10461

Our accounts and notes receivable reserve and notes discount activity for fiscal 2010 are as follows

Accounts Notes

Receivable Receivable Total

Balance at November 28 2009 $10757 8950 19707

Bad debt and note valuation charges 4671 1896 6567

Write-offs 8062 4027 12089
Discount amortization 71 71

Balance at November 27 2010 7366 6748 14114

Our licensee review committee LRC consists of our CEO VP Chief Accounting Officer Senior VP of

Retail VP of Licensed Retail VP General Counsel and Corporate Director of Credit The LRC meets

frequently to review licensee performance typically reviewing wide-range of licensee related issues including

licensee capitalization projected operating performance the viability of the market in which the licensee

operates and the licensees operating history including our cash receipts from the licensee and its sales Should

licensee have substantial past due amounts due to us but is otherwise considered viable and likely to continue as

going concern the committee has in the past decided to move all or portion of the licensees past due

accounts receivable to note receivable We believed that the note receivable allowed the licensee to focus on

keeping current and future amounts current while continuing to meet its financial obligations to us Due to

continued liquidity issues with our licensees we no longer believe this to be prudent strategy and do not plan to

convert additional past due receivables into long-term interest bearing notes in the foreseeable future

Our accounts and notes receivable are secured by the filing of security statements in accordance with the

Uniform Commercial Code and/or real estate owned by the note holder and in some cases personal guarantees

by our licensees Our practice has generally been to work with the store owner to run going out of business sale

and use any proceeds to fund the remaining receivable Our success with these events has varied However

typically the amounts recovered have not been materially different from the carrying amount of the receivable

Consequently we generally have not been required to record significant bad debt expenses upon the conclusion

of the event

Our investment in inventory affects our liquidity in several different ways First cash paid for raw materials

labor and factory overhead for the manufacture or assembly of our domestic inventories is typically paid out

well in advance of receiving cash from the sale of these inventories Payments for our imported inventories are

funded much further in advance of receiving cash from the sale of these inventories as compared to our

domestically manufactured or assembled inventories The length of our import supply chain necessitates complex

forecasting of future demand levels and is highly judgmental In economic downturns the speed at which we can

respond to decreasing demand is slowed as we typically have imported inventory in shipment or being

manufactured at any given time In addition we may also have inventory commitments under purchase orders
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that have not begun the manufacturing process Consequently as inventories build temporarily during downturns

or as we near new product roll-outs our liquidity is reduced as we have more cash invested in our products

Second the availability under our revolving credit facility is impacted by changes in our inventory balances

Lastly if we fail to respond to changes in consumer tastes quickly enough inventories may build and decrease

our liquidity

Our inventories consist of the following

November 27 November 28
2010 2009

Wholesale finished goods $24934 $19519

Work in process
244 199

Raw materials and supplies 6100 6299

Retail merchandise 18810 15386

Total inventories on first-in first-out method 50088 41403

LIFO adjustment 6550 6161
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory 1728 1854

$41810 $33388

We estimate an inventory reserve for excess quantities and obsolete items based on specific identification

and historical write-offs taking into account future demand market conditions and the respective valuations at

LIFO The need for these reserves is primarily driven by the normal product life cycle As products mature and

sales volumes decline we rationalize our product offerings to respond to consumer tastes and keep our product

lines fresh If actual demand or market conditions in the future are less favorable than those estimated additional

inventory write-downs may be required In determining reserves we calculate separate reserves on our wholesale

and retail inventories Our wholesale inventories tend to carry the majority of the reserves for excess quantities

and obsolete inventory due to the nature of our distribution model These wholesale reserves primarily represent

design and/or style obsolescence Typically product is not shipped to our retail warehouses until consumer has

ordered and paid deposit for the product We do not typically hold retail inventory for stock purposes

Consequently floor sample inventory and inventory for delivery to customers account for the majority of our

inventory at retail Retail reserves are based on accessory and clearance floor sample inventory in our stores and

any inventory that is not associated with specific customer order in our retail warehouses

Activity in the reserves for excess quantities and obsolete inventory by segment is as follows

Wholesale Retail

Segment Segment Total

Balance at November 29 2008 2071 434 2505

Additions charged to expense 2272 491 2763

Write-offs 2878 536 3414

Balance at November 28 2009 1465 389 1854

Additions charged to expense
1.588 226 1814

Write-offs 1534 406 1940

Balance at November 27 2010 1519 209 $1728

Our estimates and assumptions have been reasonably accurate in the past We did not make any significant

changes to our methodology for determining inventory reserves in 2010 and do not anticipate that our

methodology is reasonably likely to change in the future plus or minus 10% change in our inventory reserves

would not have been material to our financial statements for the periods presented
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In vestments

In recent years
and continuing through the first quarter of fiscal 2009 we have returned significant amounts

of capital to our shareholders in the form of dividends and share repurchases the funding for which has been

primarily from the orderly liquidation of our Alternative Asset Fund investment and net liquidations of our

marketable securities portfolio However due to unprecedented turmoil in the financial markets further erosion

of home furnishings sales and general uncertainty regarding the depths to which current economic conditions

could worsen the Board of Directors decided to suspend regular quarterly dividends commencing with the

second quarter of 2009 Cash dividends paid for the first quarter
of 2009 were $1142 and $75 was paid for the

repurchase of shares during 2009 During 2009 we received $19258 for the liquidation of our investments in

Styx Partners L.P and HBK Fund L.P Due to the level of the remaining assets in the Alternative Assets Fund

we dissolved our partnership with Private Advisors L.L.C effective December 31 2009 and the Funds

remaining investment interest in Fortress was transferred to us along with cash distribution of $250 We do not

expect the liquidation of our interest in Fortress to be accomplished in the near term

Debt and Other Obligations

We currently have no borrowings outstanding on our revolving credit facility with $23778 of availability

after deducting amounts for outstanding letters of credit and guarantees under the licensee loan program The

revolving credit facility contains among other provisions certain defined financial covenants including

minimum level of Tangible Net Worth as defined in the credit agreement The facility allows borrowings of up

to $30000 has variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.75% with 4.25% minimum rate 4.25% on

November 27 2010 and carries Tangible Net Worth requirement at minimum of $90000 for fiscal 2010 At

November 27 2010 our Tangible Net Worth was $105870 Borrowings under the facility are secured by

pledge of certain marketable securities and substantially all of our receivables and inventories Our Borrowing

Base as defined is function of the levels of our accounts receivable inventory and investments in marketable

securities To the extent the value of the marketable securities falls below $16000 our Borrowing Base is

decreased by 125% of the difference between $16000 and the actual value of those securities At November 27

2010 the value of our marketable securities portfolio was $14279 The facility matured on November 30 2010

but has been extended under its present terms to March 2011 We expect to have an amended and extended

facility in place prior to the extended expiration and do not anticipate any interruption in our credit availability

Four mortgages on our real estate totaling $9361 will mature during the twelve month period following

November 27 2010 We expect to satisfy these obligations through combination of refinancing borrowing

from our revolving credit facility or by utilizing operating cash flow While there can be no assurance that any

of these strategies will be successful we do not believe that the repayment of these mortgages during 2011 would

be materially detrimental to our overall liquidity

We lease land and buildings that are used in the operation of our Company-owned retail stores as well as in

the operation of licensee-owned stores We had obligations of $80324 at November 27 2010 for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having remaining terms in excess of one year

We also have guaranteed certain lease obligations of licensee operators Lease guarantees range from one to ten

years We were contingently liable under licensee lease obligation guarantees in the amount of $5856 at

November 27 2010 We have also guaranteed loans of certain of our licensees to finance initial inventory

packages for those stores The total contingent liabilities with respect to these loan guarantees were $2296 at

November 27 2010

Capital Expenditures

We currently anticipate that total capital expenditures for fiscal 2011 will be approximately $2000 to

$4000 and will be used primarily for the up fit of newly-acquired stores and remodeling of existing Company

owned stores Our capital expenditure and working capital requirements in the foreseeable future may change
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depending on many factors including but not limited to the overall performance of the new prototype stores our

rate of growth our operating results and any adjustments in our operating plan needed in response to industry

conditions competition acquisition opportunities or unexpected events We believe that our existing cash and

investment portfolio and our borrowing capacity together with cash from operations will be sufficient to meet

our capital expenditure and working capital requirements for 2011

Fair Value Measurements

We account for items measured at fair value in accordance with ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements

and Disclosures ASC 820s valuation techniques are based on observable and unobservable inputs Observable

inputs reflect readily obtainable data from independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect our market

assumptions ASC 820 classifies these inputs into the following hierarchy

Level InputsQuoted prices for identical instruments in active markets

Level InputsQuoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical or

similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or

whose significant value drivers are observable

Level InputsInstruments with primarily unobservable value drivers

Areas which involve significant fair value estimates in determining the amounts recognized in our financial

statements and the level of inputs utilized are as follows note references refer to our Consolidated Financial

Statements included under Item in this Annual Report

Hierarchy Financial

Level of Statement

Utilized Note

Inputs Reference

Marketable securities Level Note

Investment in Fortress Level Note

Acquisitions goodwill Level Note 10

Loan lease guarantees Level Note 18

All other fair value estimates which are made for disclosure purposes only utilize Level Inputs see Note

to our Consolidated Financial Statements

Recent Developments

We are currently engaged in negotiations for the sale of our interest in IHFC No definitive agreement for

the sale has been reached Any sale would be made only as part of the simultaneous sale of 100% of the

ownership interests in IHFC to the prospective purchaser We are one of four shareholders of IHFC Should the

negotiations for the sale of IHFC be successful we will likely realize significant cash proceeds in fiscal 2011 In

addition to further strengthening our balance sheet and cash on hand these proceeds net of applicable income

taxes may be utilized by us in number of ways including for example the retirement of debt and certain other

long-term obligations the settlement of various obligations related to closed stores and idle facilities paying

dividend and/or funding stock buybacks and/or funding any potential future working capital needs We however

can provide no assurance that the negotiations will conclude successfully
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

We enter into contractual obligations and commercial commitments in the ordinary course of business See

Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of these obligations The following

table summarizes our contractual payment obligations and other commercial commitments and the fiscal year in

which they are expected to be paid

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Total

Postemploymentbenefitobligations1 1395 1290 1178 1139 $1087 7896 13985

Real estate notes payable 9521 172 184 196 210 3533 13816

Other obligations commitments 1450 550 450 450 329 350 3579
Interest payable 573 284 272 259 246 1477 3111

Letters of credit 3321 3321

Operating leases 17033 16163 14384 10981 7386 14377 80324
Lease guarantees 4229 1013 403 126 85 5856
Loan guarantees 1512 635 133 16 2296

Purchase obligations

Total $39034 $20107 $17004 $13167 $9343 $27633 $126288

Does not reflect reduction for the impact of any company owned life insurance proceeds to be received

Currently we have life insurance policies with net death benefits of $4472 to provide funding for these

obligations See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information

Does not reflect reduction for the impact of sublease income to be received See Note 18 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for more information

The Company is not party to any long-term supply contracts with respect to the purchase of raw materials

or finished goods At the end of fiscal year 2010 we had approximately $17029 in open purchase orders

primarily for imported inventories which are in the ordinary course of business

Lease and loan guarantees related to payments we would only be required to make in the event of default on

the part of the guaranteed parties

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We utilize stand-by letters of credit in the procurement of certain goods in the normal course of business

We lease land and buildings that are primarily used in the operation of BHF and BFD stores We have guaranteed

certain lease obligations of licensee operators as part of our retail strategy We also have guaranteed loans of

certain of our licensees to finance initial inventory packages for these stores See Contractual Obligations and

Commitments table above and Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion of operating leases lease guarantees and loan guarantees

including descriptions of the terms of such commitments and methods used to mitigate risks associated with

these arrangements

Contingencies

We are involved in various claims and litigation as well as environmental matters which arise in the normal

course of business Although the final outcome of these legal and environmental matters cannot be determined

based on the facts presently known it is our opinion that the final resolution of these matters will not have

material adverse effect on our financial position or future results of operations

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America GAAP which requires that certain estimates and
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assumptions be made that affect the amounts and disclosures reported in those financial statements and the

related accompanying notes Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions We use our best

judgment in valuing these estimates and may as warranted solicit external advice Estimates are based on

current facts and circumstances prior experience and other assumptions believed to be reasonable The following

critical accounting policies some of which are impacted significantly by judgments assumptions and estimates

affect our consolidated financial statements

ConsolidationThe consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Bassett Furniture Industries

Incorporated and its majority-owned subsidiaries for whom we have operating control We also consolidate

variable interest entities for which we are the primary beneficiary

Revenue RecognitionRevenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership and title to the

product have transferred to the buyer This generally occurs upon the shipment of goods to independent dealers

or in the case of Company-owned retail stores upon delivery to the customer Our payment terms generally vary

from 30 to 60 days An estimate for returns and allowances has been provided in recorded sales The contracts

with our licensee store owners do not provide for any royalty or license fee to be paid to us

Staff Accounting Bulletin No 104 Revenue Recognition SAB 104 outlines the four basic criteria for

recognizing revenue as follows persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred or

services have been rendered the sellers price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and collectihility is

reasonably assured SAB 104 further asserts that if collectibility of all or portion of the revenue is not

reasonably assured revenue recognition should be deferred until payment is received During fiscal 2010 2009

and 2008 there were seven thirteen and five dealers respectively for which these criteria were not met and

therefore revenue was being recognized on cost recovery basis As of November 27 2010 and November 28

2009 two and seven dealers respectively remained on the cost recovery basis

Allowance for Doubtful AccountsWe maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses

resulting from the inability of our customers to make required payments Our accounts receivable reserves were

$7366 and $10757 at November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 respectively representing 18.9% and 23.7%

of our gross accounts receivable balances at those dates respectively The allowance for doubtful accounts is

based on review of specifically identified customer accounts in addition to an overall aging analysis We

evaluate the collectibility of our receivables from our licensees and other customers on quarterly basis based on

factors such as their financial condition our collateral position potential future plans with licensees and other

similar factors Our allowance for doubtful accounts represents our best estimate of potential losses on our

accounts and notes receivable and is adjusted accordingly based on historical experience current developments

and present economic conditions and trends In the current economic environment our historical experience with

customers carries less weight than in previous years The timeliness of licensees or customers ability to pay us

can deteriorate at much faster pace than in previous years As such despite our best efforts the ultimate

precision with respect to our allowance for doubtful accounts is likely to be less when compared to previous

periods Although actual losses have not differed materially from our previous estimates future losses could

differ from our current estimates Unforeseen events such as licensee or customer bankruptcy filing could have

material impact on our results of operations

Long Term Notes ReceivablePreviously when in the ordinary course of business licensee had

substantial past due amounts due to the Company but was otherwise considered viable and likely to continue as

going concern we may have decided to move all or portion of licensees past due accounts receivable to

long-term interest-bearing note receivable We believed that the note receivable allowed the licensee to focus on

keeping current and future amounts current while continuing to meet its financial obligations to us Due to

continued liquidity issues with our licensees we no longer believe this to be prudent strategy and do not plan to

convert additional past due receivables into long-term interest bearing notes in the foreseeable future Some of

these notes are collateralized by real estate At the inception of the note receivable we determine whether the

note bears market rate of interest In estimating market rate of interest we first consider factors such as

licensee capitalization projected operating performance the viability of the market in which the licensee
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operates and the licensees operating history including our cash receipts from the licensee licensee sales and any

underlying collateral For those licensees where there is concern of collectibility our estimated market rate of

interest is based on certain published highyield bond indices For those where collectibility is less of concern

the estimated market rate of interest is generally based on the prime rate discount on the note is recorded if we

determine that the note bears an interest rate below the market rate and premium is recorded if we determine

that the note bears an interest rate above the market rate We amortize the related note discount or premium over

the contractual term of the note and cease amortizing the discount to interest income when the present value of

expected future cash flows is less than the carrying value of the note Interest income associated with the

discount amortization is immaterial and is recorded in other loss net in our consolidated statement of operations

On quarterly basis we examine these notes for evidence of impairment considering factors such as licensee

capitalization projected operating performance the viability of the market in which the licensee operates and the

licensees operating history including our cash receipts from the licensee licensee sales and any underlying

collateral After considering these factors should we believe that all or portion of the note receivable cannot or

will not be paid we record an impairment charge on the note using discounted cash flow methods to determine

the impairment charge An impairment charge does not necessarily indicate that loan has no recovery or

salvage value but rather that based on managements judgment and the consideration of specific licensee

factors it is more prudent than not to record an impairment charge Our allowance for doubtful accounts and

discounts on notes receivable were $6748 and $8950 at November 27 2010 and November 28 2009

respectively representing 45.2% and 46.1% of our gross notes receivable balances at those dates respectively

InventoriesInventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined for domestic furniture

inventories using the last-in first-out method The cost of imported inventories is determined on first-in

first-out basis We estimate an inventory reserve for excess quantities and obsolete items based on specific

identification and historical write-offs taking into account future demand and market conditions If actual

demand or market conditions in the future are less favorable than those estimated additional inventory write-

downs may be required

Valuation Allowance on Deferred Tax AssetsWe evaluate our deferred income tax assets to determine if

valuation allowances are required or should be adjusted valuation allowance is established against our

deferred tax assets based on consideration of all available evidence both positive and negative using more

likely than not standard This assessment considers among other matters the nature frequency and severity of

recent losses forecasts of future profitability the duration of statutory carryforward periods our experience with

tax attributes expiring unused and tax planning alternatives In making such judgments significant weight is

given to evidence that can be objectively verified

InvestmentsInvestments are marked to market and recorded at their fair value We account for our

investment in Fortress by marking it to market value each month based on the net asset values provided by the

fund manager adjusted for estimated liquidity discounts Unrealized holding gains and losses net of the related

income tax effect on available for sale securities are excluded from income and are reported as other

comprehensive income in stockholders equity Realized gains and losses from securities classified as available

for sale are included in income and are determined using the specific identification method for ascertaining the

cost of securities sold We also review our available for sale securities to determine whether decline in fair

value of security below the cost basis is other than temporary Should the decline be considered other than

temporary we write down the cost of the security and include the loss in current earnings In determining

whether decline is other than temporary we consider such factors as the significance of the decline as

compared to the cost basis the current state of the financial markets and the economy the length of time for

which there has been an unrealized loss and the relevant information regarding the operations of the investee

GoodwillGoodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the value assigned to tangible assets

and liabilities and identifiable intangible assets of businesses acquired The acquisition of assets and liabilities

and any resulting goodwill is allocated to the respective reporting unit Wholesale Retail or Real Estate

Investments We review goodwill at the reporting unit level annually for impairment or more frequently if events

or circumstances indicate that assets might be impaired
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The goodwill impairment test consists of two-step process if necessary The first step compares the carrying

value of each reporting unit that has goodwill with the estimated fair value of the respective reporting unit Should

the carrying value of reporting unit be in excess of the estimated fair value of that reporting unit the second step is

performed whereby we must calculate the implied fair value of goodwill by deducting the fair value of all tangible

and intangible net assets of the reporting unit from the fair value of the reporting unit This second step represents

hypothetical purchase price allocation as if we had acquired the reporting unit on that date Our impairment

methodology uses discounted cash flow analysis requiring certain assumptions and estimates to be made regarding

future profitability of the reporting unit and industry economic factors While we believe such assumptions and

estimates are reasonable the actual results may differ materially from the projected amounts

Impairment of Long-Lived AssetsWe periodically evaluate whether events or circumstances have occurred

that indicate long-lived assets may not be recoverable or that the remaining useful life may warrant revision When

such events or circumstances are present we assess the recoverability of long-lived assets by determining whether

the carrying value will be recovered through the expected undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of

the asset In the event the sum of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying value of the

asset an impairment loss equal to the excess of the assets carrying value over its fair value is recorded

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the FASB issued authoritative guidance on the consolidation of VIEs which became effective

for our first quarter of fiscal 2010 This new guidance requires entities to perform qualitative analysis to

determine whether the enterprises variable interest or interests give it controlling financial interest in variable

interest entity The enterprise is required to assess on an ongoing basis whether it is primary beneficiary or has

an implicit responsibility to ensure that variable interest entity operates as designed This guidance changes the

previous quantitative approach for determining the primary beneficiary to qualitative approach based on which

entity has the power to direct activities of variable interest entity that most significantly impact economic

performance and has the obligation to absorb losses or receive benefits that could be significant to the

variable purpose entity In addition it requires enhanced disclosures that will provide investors with more

transparent information about an enterprises involvement with variable interest entity We have adopted these

provisions and there was no significant impact on our consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement on Financial Accounting Standards No 14 1R Business

Combinations now codified primarily in ASC Topic 805 ASC 805 now requires that the acquisition method of

accounting instead of the purchase method be applied to all business combinations and that an acquirer is

identified in the process The guidance requires that fair market value be used to recognize assets and assumed

liabilities instead of the cost allocation method where the costs of an acquisition are allocated to individual assets

based on their estimated fair values Goodwill would be calculated as the excess purchase price over the fair

value of the assets acquired however negative goodwill will be recognized immediately as gain instead of

being allocated to individual assets acquired Costs of the acquisition will be recognized separately from the

business combination The guidance became effective for us beginning in fiscal 2010 See Note 10 to our

consolidated financial statements included under Item of this Annual Report regarding the application of ASC
805 to the acquisition of licensee stores during fiscal 2010

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASU No 2009-13 Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements ASU
2009-13 and ASU No 2009-14 Certain Arrangements That Include Software Elements ASU 2009-14
ASU 2009-13 requires entities to allocate revenues in the absence of vendor-specific objective evidence or third

party evidence of selling price for deliverables using selling price hierarchy associated with the relative selling

price method ASU 2009-14 removes tangible products from the
scope of software revenue guidance and provides

guidance on determining whether software deliverables in an arrangement that includes tangible product are

covered by the scope of the software revenue guidance ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 should be applied on

prospective basis for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after

June 15 2010 with early adoption permitted We do not expect that the adoption of ASU 2009-13 or ASU 2009-14

will have material impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial condition
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In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-01 Equity Accounting for Distributions to Shareholders

with Components of Stock and Cash Topic 505 which clarifies that the stock portion of distribution to

shareholders that allow them to receive cash or stock with potential limitation on the total amount of cash that

all shareholders can elect to receive in the aggregate is considered share issuance that is reflected in earnings

per share prospectively and is not stock dividend This update became effective for our first quarter of fiscal

2010 The adoption of ASU No 2010-01 did not have an impact on our consolidated financial position or results

of operations

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 20 10-02 Consolidation Accounting and Reporting for

Decreases in Ownership of Subsidiarya Scope Clarification Topic 810 ASU 2010-02 clarifies Topic 810

implementation issues relating to decrease in ownership of subsidiary that is business or non-profit activity

This amendment affects entities that have previously adopted Topic 10-10 formally SFAS 160 This update

became effective for our first quarter of fiscal 2010 The adoption of ASU No 20 10-02 did not have an impact

on our consolidated financial position or results of operations

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-06 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 820 Fair

Value Measurements and Disclosures related to disclosures about fair value measurements New disclosures will

require entities to disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level and Level fair

value measurements and to describe the reasons for the transfers and to present separately in the reconciliation

for fair value measurements in Level information about purchases sales issuances and settlements on gross

basis rather than as one net amount The ASU also amends ASC Subtopic 820-10 to clarify certain existing

disclosures regarding the level of disaggregation at which fair value measurements are provided for each class of

assets and liabilities and disclosures about inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value for both

recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements that fall in either Level or Level The new disclosures

and clarifications of existing disclosures are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after

December 15 2009 except for the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements in the

reconciliation of Level fair value measurements which become effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15 2010 We implemented the new disclosures and clarifications of existing disclosures beginning

with our second quarter of fiscal 2010 and the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements in

the reconciliation of Level fair value measurements will be implemented beginning in our first quarter of fiscal

2012 The adoption of this guidance has not had and is not expected to have material impact on our financial

position or results of operations

In February 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 20 10-09 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 855

Subsequent Events to no longer require companies that file with the United States Securities and Exchange

Commission to indicate the date through which they have analyzed subsequent events This updated guidance

became effective immediately upon issuance therefore we adopted it as of the first quarter of 2010

In July 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-20 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 310

Receivables related to disclosures about the credit quality of financing receivables and the allowance for credit

losses The new disclosures will require disaggregated information related to financing receivables and will

include for each class of financing receivables among other things rollforward for the allowance for credit

losses credit quality information impaired loan information modification information non-accrual and past-due

information The disclosures as of the end of reporting period are effective for interim and annual reporting

periods ending on or after December 15 2010 The disclosures about activity that occurs during reporting

period are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15 2010 In January

2011 ASU No 2011-01 delayed the effective date for certain requirements of ASU 2010-20 regarding

disclosures about troubled debt restructurings until guidance can be issued as to what constitutes troubled debt

restructuring Accordingly we will implement the guidance for period-end disclosures effective as of the end of

our first quarter of fiscal 2011 with the guidance for period activity disclosures to be implemented during our

second quarter
of fiscal 2011 The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have material impact on our

financial position or results of operations
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In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-28 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 350

IntangiblesGoodwill Other The amendments in ASU 20 10-28 affect all entities that have recognized

goodwill and have one or more reporting units whose carrying amount for purposes of performing Step of the

goodwill impairment test is zero or negative The amendments in ASU 20 10-28 modify Step so that for those

reporting units an entity is required to perform Step of the goodwill impairment test if it is more likely than not

that goodwill impairment exists In determining whether it is more likely than not that goodwill impairment

exists an entity should consider whether there are any adverse qualitative factors indicating that an impairment

may exist The qualitative factors are consistent with existing guidance which requires that goodwill of

reporting unit be tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that

would more likely than not reduce the fair value of reporting unit below its carrying amount This guidance will

become effective for us at the beginning of our second quarter of fiscal 2011 The adoption of this guidance is not

expected to have material impact on our financial position or results of operations

In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 20 10-29 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 805

Business Combinations The objective of ASU 2010-29 is to address diversity in practice about the interpretation

of the pro forma revenue and earnings disclosure requirements for business combinations The amendments in

ASU 20 10-29 specify that if public entity presents comparative financial statements the entity should disclose

revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combinations that occurred during the

current year had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only The

amendments also expand the supplemental pro forma disclosures to include description of the nature and

amount of material nonrecurring pro forma adjustments directly attributable to the business combination

included in the reported pro forma revenue and earnings The amendments affect any public entity as defined by

ASC 805 that enters into business combinations that are material on an individual or aggregate basis This

guidance will become effective for us for acquisitions occurring on or after the beginning of our 2012 fiscal year

We do not expect the adoption of this guidance will have material impact upon our financial position or results

of operations

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from increases in interest rates on our revolving credit facility The

outstanding borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at variable rate based upon LIBOR The interest

cost of the credit facility is affected by changes in short-term interest rates and increases in those rates can

adversely affect our results of operations

We are exposed to market risk for changes in market prices of our marketable securities At November 27

2010 we had $14279 in marketable securities which consisted of portfolio of fixed income securities and

money market funds Maturity dates on the fixed income securities in the portfolio range from one to twenty

years As part of our current debt facility we have pledged certain of our marketable securities as collateral To

the extent the value of the marketable securities falls below $16000 our Borrowing Base as defined is

decreased by 125% of the difference between $16000 and the actual value of those securities Accordingly the

effect on our Borrowing Base at November 27 2010 is reduction of $2151

We are exposed to market risk from changes in the value of foreign currencies Substantially all of our

imports purchased outside of North America are denominated in U.S dollars Therefore we believe that gains or

losses resulting from changes in the value of foreign currencies relating to foreign purchases not denominated in

U.S dollars would not be material to our results from operations in fiscal 2010

We are exposed to market risk from changes in the cost of raw materials used in our manufacturing

processes principally wood woven fabric and foam products recovery in home construction could result in

increases in wood and fabric costs from current levels and the cost of foam products which are petroleum-based

is sensitive to changes in the price of oil
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We have potential exposure to market risk related to the cunent weakness in the commercial real estate

market Our retail real estate holdings of $27513 for licensee-operated stores as well as our holdings of $30943

for Company-owned stores at November 27 2010 could suffer significant impairment in value if we are forced to

close additional stores and sell or lease the related properties in the current market Additionally if we are

required to assume responsibility for payment under the $5856 of lease obligations we have guaranteed on

behalf of licensees as of November 27 2010 we may not be able to secure sufficient sub-lease income in the

current market to offset the payments required under the guarantees
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As used herein unless the context otherwise requires Bassett the Company we us and our
refer to Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and its subsidiaries References to 2010 2009 2008 2007

and 2006 mean the fiscal years ended November 27 2010 November 28 2009 November 29

2008 November 24 2007 and November 25 2006 respectively Please note that fiscal 2008 contained 53 weeks

SAFE-HARBOR FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This discussion contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 with respect to the financial condition results of operations and business of

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and its subsidiaries Such forward-looking statements are identified by

use of forward-looking words such as anticipates believes plans estimates expects aimed and

intends or words or phrases of similarexpression These forward-looking statements involve certain risks and

uncertainties No assurance can be given that any such matters will be realized Important factors which should

be read in conjunction with Item IA Risk Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those

contemplated by such forward-looking statements include

competitive conditions in the home furnishings industry

general economic conditions

overall retail traffic levels and consumer demand for home furnishings

ability of our customers and consumers to obtain credit

Bassett store openings

store closings and the profitability of the stores independent licensees and Company-owned retail

stores

ability to implement our Company-owned retail strategies and realize the benefits from such strategies

as they are implemented

fluctuations in the cost and availability of raw materials labor and sourced products including fabrics

from troubled suppliers

results of marketing and advertising campaigns

information and technology advances

ability to execute global sourcing strategies

performance of our marketable securities portfolio and our investment in the Fortress Value Recovery

Fund LLC Fortress

delays or difficulties in converting some of our non-operating assets to cash

future tax legislation or regulatory or judicial positions

ability to efficiently manage the import supply chain to minimize business interruption

effects of profit improvement initiatives in our domestic wood operations

continued profitability of our unconsolidated affiliated companies particularly the International Home

Furnishings Center and its ability to pay dividends
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

November 27 2010 and November 28 2009

In thousands except share and per share data

2010 2009

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
11071 23221

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $7366 and $10757

as of November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 respectively 31621 34605

Inventories 41810 33388

Other current assets 6969 13312

Total current assets 91471 104526

Property and equipment net
46250 50636

Investments
15111 14931

Retail real estate
27513 28793

Notes receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts and discounts of $6748 and

$8950 as of November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 respectively 7508 8309

Other
9464 9034

59596 61067

Total assets $197317 $216229

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
24893 14711

Accrued compensation and benefits 6652 6490

Customer deposits
9171 5946

Other accrued liabilities 11594 11730

Current portion of real estate notes payable
9521 4393

Total current liabilities
61831 43270

Long-term liabilities

Post employment benefit obligations
11004 10841

Bank debt
15000

Real estate notes payable
4295 16953

Distributions in excess of affiliate earnings
7356 10954

Other long-term liabilities 6526 8877

29181 62625

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders equity

Common stock $5 par value 50000000 shares authorized issued and outstanding

11558974 in 2010 and 11454716 in 2009 57795 57274

Retained earnings
48459 50461

Additional paid-in-capital
478 481

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 427 2118

Total stockholders equity
106305 110334

Total liabilities and stockholders equity
$197317 $216229

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part
of these balance sheets
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

For the years ended November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and November 29 2008

In thousands except per share data

2010 2009 2008

Net sales $235254 $232722 $288298

Cost of sales 122566 129882 173399

Gross profit 112688 102840 114899

Selling general and administrative expenses excluding bad debt and notes

receivable valuation charges 110808 103789 116576

Bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges 6567 15205 11769

Income from Continued Dumping Subsidy Offset Act 488 1627 2122
Restructuring asset impairment charges and unusual gain net 2987 3070
Lease exit costs 2434 642

Proxy defense costs 1418

Loss from operations 4199 19948 16454
Income loss from investments 2325 1966 3938
Other than temporary impairment of investments 1255 3296
Income from unconsolidated affiliated companies net 4700 5067 6300
Interest expense 2870 3699 4021
Other loss net 2164 2652 2001
Loss before income taxes 2208 24453 23410
Income tax benefit provision 206 1754 16945

Net loss 2002 22699 40355

Net loss per share

Basic and diluted loss per share 0.17 1.99 3.46

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

For the years ended November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and November 29 2008

In thousands

4467
5443
5262
7003

7788

2013

4247

378
9101

8851
937

494

3537

15000
7530
1087

142

23475

12150
23221

11071

6744
11704

3451

7064

4120

1094

129

481
26234

6939
3847

645

22339

4000
812

1081
95

75
1142

7015

19444

3777

23221

13161
7199

1047
14662

18955

4702
858

2862
216

35817
6185
6091

896

18
33687

9000

792
217

192

4313
18684

321

14493

239

3538

3777

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements

2010 2009 2008

2002 $22699 $40355

5966 6604 8089

4737 2319 890

2987 3070
748

2434 642

1407 2834 292

6567 15205 11769

1255 3296

2272 764 1447
17403

400
504 2364 99

Operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by used in operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization

Equity in undistributed income of investments and unconsolidated

affiliated companies

Provision for restructuring asset impairment charges and unusual gains

net

Impairment of real estate

Lease exit costs

Provision for lease and loan guarantees

Provision for losses on accounts and notes receivable

Other than temporary impairment of investments

Realized income from investments

Deferred income taxes

Payment to terminate lease

Other net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other current assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment

Purchases of retail real estate

Proceeds from sales and condemnation of property and equipment

Acquisition of retail licensee stores net of cash acquired

Proceeds from sales of investments

Purchases of investments

Dividends from affiliates

Net cash received on licensee notes

Other net

Net cash provided by investing activities

Financing activities

Net borrowings repayments under revolving credit facility

Repayments of real estate notes payable

Repayments of other notes

Issuance of common stock

Repurchases of common stock

Cash dividends

Other net

Net cash used in financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalentsbeginning of year

Cash and cash equivalentsend of year
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

For the years ended November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and November 29 2008

In thousands except share and per share data

Accumulated

Additional other
Common Stock

paid-in Retained comprehensive
Shares Amount capital earnings income loss Total

Balance November 24 2007 11806592 $59033 2180 $131725 1914 $194852

Comprehensive income loss
Net loss 40355 40355
Actuarial adjustment to supplemental

executive retirement defined benefit

plan 608 608

Net change in unrealized holding

gains 2951 2951

Total comprehensive loss 42698

Regular dividends $.75 per share 8730 8730
Special dividend $75 per share 8734 8734
Issuance of common stock 34939 175 121 296

Purchase and retirement of common
stock 421100 2106 2207 4313

Stock-based compensation 252 252

Impact of adoption of certain provisions of

ASC 740 746 746

Balance November 29 2008 1142043 57102 346 73.160 429 130179

Comprehensive income loss
Net loss 22699 22699
Actuarial adjustment to supplemental

executive retirement defined benefit

plan 125 125

Net change in unrealized holding

gains 2422 2422

Total comprehensive loss 20152
Issuance of common stock 95185 476 277 199

Purchase and retirement of common

stock 60900 304 229 75
Stock-based compensation 183 183

Balance November 28 2009 11454716 57274 481 50461 2118 110334

Comprehensive loss

Net loss 2002 2002
Actuarial adjustment to supplemental

executive retirement defined benefit

plan 666 666
Net change in unrealized holding

gains 1879 1879

Total comprehensive loss 4547
Issuance of common stock 104258 521 379 142

Stock-based compensation 376 376

BalanceNovember272010 11558974 $57795 478 48459 427 $106305

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In thousands except share and per share data

Description of Business

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated together with its consolidated subsidiaries Bassett we
our the Company based in Bassett Va is leading manufacturer marketer and retailer of branded home

furnishings Bassetts full range of furniture products and accessories designed to provide quality style and

value are sold through an exclusive nation-wide network of 101 retail stores known as Bassett Bassett Furniture

Direct Bassett Design Centers or Basset Home Furnishings referred to as BFD or store herein as well as

other multi-line furniture stores Of the 101 stores the Company owns and operates 47 stores Company-owned

retail stores with 54 independently owned licensee operated

The Company sourced approximately 53% of its wholesale products to be distributed through the store

network from various countries with the remaining volume produced at its two domestic manufacturing

facilities

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The Companys fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to November 30 which periodically results in

53-week year Fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009 each contained 52 weeks while fiscal 2008 contained 53 weeks The

Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and our

majority-owned subsidiaries for whom we have operating control All significant intercompany balances and

transactions are eliminated in consolidation The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles in the United States GAAP Unless otherwise indicated references

in the Consolidated Financial Statements to fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 are to Bassetts fiscal
year

ended

November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and November 29 2008 respectively References to the ASC
included hereinafter refer to the Accounting Standards Codification established by the Financial Accounting

Standards Board as the source of authoritative GAAP

For comparative purposes certain amounts in the 2009 and 2008 financial statements have been reclassified

to conform to the 2010 presentation

The equity method of accounting is used for our investments in affiliated companies in which we exercise

significant influence but do not maintain operating control Consolidated net income or net loss includes our

proportionate share of the net income or net loss of these companies

We analyzed our licensees under the requirements for VIEs All of these licensees operate as BFD stores

and are furniture retailers We sell furniture to these licensees and in some cases have extended credit beyond

normal terms made lease guarantees guaranteed loans or loaned directly to the licensees We have recorded

reserves for potential exposures related to these licensees See Note 18 for disclosure of leases lease guarantees

and loan guarantees
Based on financial projections and best available information all licensees have sufficient

equity to carry out their principal operating activities without subordinated financial support Furthermore we

believe that the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the licensees operating performance

continues to lie with the ownership of the licensee dealers Our rights to assume control over or otherwise

influence the licensees significant activities only exist pursuant to our license and security agreements and are in

the nature of protective rights as contemplated under ASC Topic 810 We completed our assessment for other

potential VIEs and concluded that these entities were not VIEs We will continue to reassess the status of

potential VIEs including when facts and circumstances surrounding each potential VIE change
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In thousands except share and per share data

During the first and second quarters of fiscal 2009 the Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission

the SEC performed review of our Form 10-K for the year ended November 29 2008 and subsequently our

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28 2009 Among other items the Staff identified issues with our

initial valuation of notes receivable due from our licensees primarily for amounts converted from past due

accounts receivable due from them and our methodology for determining reserves for our accounts receivable

notes receivable and loan guarantees As result of the SECs comments we reviewed our accounting policies

and
processes in these areas previously mentioned and determined that we should have recorded lower values for

certain of our notes receivable upon inception and subsequently recorded additional reserves on those notes due

to an error in how we determined an appropriate market rate of interest for those notes In addition we also

concluded that we should have recognized revenue for certain customers on cost recovery basis for shipments

beginning in the first quarter of 2009 and that additional reserves for loan guarantees should be established

Therefore we recorded an additional $3280 of net charges in the quarter ended February 28 2009 to account for

these lower note values increased reserves and reduced revenue and filed an amended Form l0-Q for the quarter
then ended Of the amount recorded $1936 related to periods prior to the quarter ended February 28 2009
However based on our consideration of the underlying quantitative and qualitative factors surrounding the prior

period errors the effects on the previous annual and interim periods were determined to be immaterial and
therefore periods prior to the quarter ended February 28 2009 were not restated

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts

of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Some of the more significant estimates include allowances

for doubtful accounts valuation of inventories valuation of deferred taxes sales returns loan and lease

guarantees and insurance reserves Actual results could differ from those estimates

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership and title to the product have transferred to

the buyer This occurs upon the shipment of goods to independent dealers or in the case of Company-owned
retail stores upon delivery to the customer We offer terms varying from 30 to 60 days for wholesale customers

Estimates for returns and allowances for advertising and promotional arrangements have been recorded as

reduction to revenue The contracts with our licensee store owners do not provide for any royalty or license fee to

be paid to us Revenue is reported net of any taxes collected

Staff Accounting Bulletin No 104 Revenue Recognition SAB 104 outlines the four basic criteria for

recognizing revenue as follows persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred or

services have been rendered the sellers price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and collectibility is

reasonably assured SAB 104 further asserts that if collectability of all or portion of the revenue is not

reasonably assured revenue recognition should be deferred until payment is received During fiscal 2010 2009

and 2008 there were seven thirteen and five dealers respectively for which these criteria were not met and

therefore revenue was being recognized on cost recovery basis As of November 27 2010 November 28 2009
and November 29 2008 there were two seven and five dealers respectively that remained on the cost recovery
basis The following table details the total revenue and cost deferred

2010 2009 2008

Revenuedeferred $947 $7149 $2215

Cost deferred $663 $5004 $1551
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In thousands except share and per share data

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash on hand demand deposits in banks and all highly liquid investments with an

original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

In addition to the amounts paid net of cash acquired for the acquisition of licensee stores reported under

investing activities in our consolidated statements of cash flows the majority of such acquisitions were funded

primarily through non-cash transactions in which receivables due from the licensees were settled in exchange for

certain inventory and property and equipment of the licensees as well as the assumption of certain liabilities The

value of the non-cash portion of such transactions was $2751 $1933 and $1117 for 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

Accounts Receivable

Substantially all of our trade accounts receivable are due from customers located within the United States

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our

customers to make required payments The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on review of specifically

identified accounts in addition to an overall aging analysis Judgments are made with respect to the collectibility

of accounts receivable based on historical experience and current economic trends Actual losses could differ

from those estimates

Notes Receivable

Previously when in the ordinary course of business licensee had substantial past due amounts due to the

Company but was otherwise considered viable and likely to continue as going concern we may have decided

to move all or portion of licensees past
due accounts receivable to long-term interest-bearing note

receivable We believed that the note receivable allowed the licensee to focus on keeping current and future

amounts current while continuing to meet its financial obligations to us Due to continued liquidity issues with

our licensees we no longer believe this to be prudent strategy and do not plan to convert additional past due

receivables into long-term interest bearing notes in the foreseeable future While the majority of our notes

receivable were issued as conversions of existing accounts receivable some were issued to assist licensees in

opening or acquiring new stores in underserved markets which we believed would benefit both the licensee and

the Company Some of these notes are collateralized by real estate

At the inception of the note receivable we determine whether the note bears market rate of interest In

estimating market rate of interest we first consider factors such as licensee capitalization projected operating

performance the viability of the market in which the licensee operates and the licensees operating history

including our cash receipts from the licensee licensee sales and any underlying collateral For those licensees

where there is concern of collectibility our estimated market rate of interest is based on certain published

high-yield bond indices For those where collectibility is less of concern the estimated market rate of interest is

generally based on the prime rate plus an applicable margin discount on the note is recorded if we determine

that the note bears an interest rate below the market rate and premium is recorded if we determine that the note

bears an interest rate above the market rate We amortize the related note discount or premium over the

contractual term of the note and cease amortizing the discount to interest income when the present value of

expected future cash flows is less than the carrying value of the note Interest income associated with the

discount amortization is immaterial and is recorded in other loss net in our consolidated statement of operations
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In thousands except share and
per

share data

We examine notes receivable for evidence of impairment considering factors such as licensee capitalization

projected operating performance the viability of the market in which the licensee operates and the licensees

operating history including our cash receipts from the licensee licensee sales and any underlying collateral After

considering these factors should we believe that all or portion of the expected cash flows attributable to the note

receivable will not be received we record an impairment charge on the note by estimating future cash flows and

discounting them at the effective interest rate Any difference between the estimated discounted cash flows and the

carrying value of the note is recorded as an increase to the allowance for doubtful accounts We do not accrue

interest income due on notes for which the licensee is unable to make interest payments

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments that subject us to credit risk consist primarily of investments accounts and notes

receivable and financial guarantees Investments are managed within established guidelines to mitigate risks

Accounts and notes receivable and financial guarantees subject us to credit risk partially due to the concentration

of amounts due from and guaranteed on behalf of independent licensee customers At November 27 2010 and

November 28 2009 our aggregate exposure
from receivables and guarantees related to customers consisted of

the following

2010 2009

Accounts receivable net of allowances Note $31621 $34605

Notes receivable net of allowances Note 8166 10461

Contingent obligations under lease and loan guarantees less amounts

recognized Note 18 5848 11454

Total credit risk exposure related to customers $45635 $56520

At November 27 2010 approximately 20% of the aggregate risk exposure net of reserves shown above

was attributable to two licensees accounting for approximately 10% each At November 28 2009 no customer

accounted for greater than 10% of the aggregate risk exposure net of reserves shown In fiscal 2010 2009 and

2008 no customer accounted for more than 10% of total net sales

We have no foreign manufacturing or retail operations We define export sales as sales to any country or

territory other than the United States or its territories or possessions Our export sales were approximately

$5350 $3380 and $5200 in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Inventories

Inventories retail merchandise finished goods work in process and raw materials are stated at the lower of

cost or market Cost is determined for domestic manufactured furniture inventories using the last-in first-out

LIFO method because we believe this methodology provides better matching of revenue and expenses The

cost of imported inventories is determined on first-in first-out FIFO basis Inventories accounted for under

the LIFO method represented 18% and 19% of total inventory before reserves at November 27 2010 and

November 28 2009 respectively We estimate inventory reserves for excess quantities and obsolete items based

on specific identification and historical write-offs taking into account future demand and market conditions If

actual demand or market conditions in the future are less favorable than those estimated additional inventory

write-downs may be required
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of all land buildings and leasehold improvements and machinery and

equipment used in the manufacturing and warehousing of furniture our Company-owned retail operations and the

administration of the wholesale and Company-owned retail operations This property and equipment is stated at cost

less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets

utilizing the straight-line method Buildings and improvements are generally depreciated over period of 10 to 39

years Machinery and equipment are generally depreciated over period of to 10 years Leasehold improvements

are amortized based on the underlying lease term or the assets estimated useful life whichever is shorter

Retail Real Estate

Retail real estate is comprised of owned and leased properties utilized by licensee operated BFD stores

These properties are located in high traffic upscale locations that are normally occupied by large successful

national retailers This real estate is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and is depreciated over the useful

lives of the respective assets utilizing the straight line method Buildings and improvements are generally

depreciated over period of 10 to 39 years Leasehold improvements are amortized based on the underlying lease

term or the assets estimated useful life whichever is shorter As of November 27 2010 and November 28

2009 the cost of retail real estate included land totaling $8011 and $7451 respectively and building and

leasehold improvements of $27843 and $29436 respectively As of November 27 2010 and November 28

2009 accumulated depreciation of retail real estate was $8341 and $8094 respectively Depreciation expense

was $1306 $1353 and $1704 in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of consideration given over the fair value of the tangible

assets and liabilities and identifiable intangible assets of businesses acquired The acquisition of assets and

liabilities and the resulting goodwill is allocated to the respective reporting unit Wholesale Retail or Real

Estate/Investments We review goodwill at the reporting unit level annually for impairment or more frequently if

events or circumstances indicate that assets might be impaired

The goodwill impairment test consists of two-step process
if necessary The first step compares the carrying

value of each reporting unit that has goodwill with the estimated fair value of the respective reporting unit Should

the carrying value of reporting unit be in excess of the estimated fair value of that reporting unit the second step is

performed whereby we must calculate the implied fair value of goodwill by deducting the fair value of all tangible

and intangible net assets of the reporting unit from the fair value of the reporting unit This second step represents

hypothetical application of the acquisition method of accounting as if we had acquired the reporting unit on that

date Our impairment methodology uses discounted cash flow analysis requiring certain assumptions and

estimates to be made regarding future profitability of the reporting unit and industry economic factors While we

believe such assumptions and estimates are reasonable the actual results may differ materially from the projected

amounts As of November 27 2010 goodwill of $435 resulting from the acquisition of the Raleigh NC store in

November of 2010 see Note 10 is included in other assets in the accompanying balance sheet As of November 28

2009 all previously recorded goodwill has been fully impaired

Impairment of Long Lived Assets

We periodically evaluate whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate long-lived assets may

not be recoverable or that the remaining useful life may warrant revision When such events or circumstances are

present we assess the recoverability of long-lived assets by determining whether the carrying value will be
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recovered through the expected undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of the asset In the event

the sum of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying value of the asset an impairment

loss equal to the excess of the assets carrying value over its fair value is recorded Fair value is determined based

on discounted cash flows or appraised values depending on the nature of the assets The long-term nature of these

assets requires the estimation of cash inflows and outflows several years into the future

Investments

Investments consist of portfolio of marketable securities and our investment in the Fortress Value

Recovery Fund LLC Fortress formerly part of the Bassett Industries Alternative Asset Fund L.P

Alternative Asset Fund Marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale and marked to market and

recorded at their fair value These marketable securities are held in the custody of major financial institutions

Our investment in Fortress is marked to market based upon the net asset values provided by the general partner

adjusted for estimated liquidity discounts with the resultant difference from the prior valuation included in

income loss from investments in the accompanying statements of operations Unrealized holding gains and

losses net of the related income tax effect on available-for-sale securities are excluded from income and are

reported as other comprehensive income in stockholders equity Realized gains and losses from securities

classified as available-for-sale are included in income and are determined using the specific identification method

for ascertaining the cost of securities sold

We review our available-for-sale securities to determine whether decline in fair value of security below

the cost basis is other than temporary Should the decline be considered other than temporary we write-down the

cost of the security and include the loss in current earnings In determining whether decline is other than

temporary we consider factors such as the significance of the decline as compared to the cost basis the current

state of the financial markets and the economy the length of time for which there has been an unrealized loss and

the relevant information regarding the operations of the investee

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the liability method which requires that we recognize deferred tax assets

and liabilities for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying

amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary

differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in

tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date In addition significant judgment

is required in evaluating our federal state and foreign tax positions and in the determination of our tax provision

Despite our belief that our liability for unrecognized tax benefits is adequate it is often difficult to predict the

final outcome or the timing of the resolution of any particular tax matters We may adjust these liabilities as

relevant circumstances evolve such as guidance from the relevant tax authority or our tax advisors or resolution

of issues in the courts These adjustments are recognized as component of income tax expense in the period in

which they are identified

We evaluate our deferred income tax assets to determine if valuation allowances are required or should be

adjusted valuation allowance is established against our deferred tax assets based on consideration of all

available evidence both positive and negative using more likely than not standard This assessment

considers among other matters the nature frequency and severity of recent losses forecasts of future

profitability the duration of statutory carryforward periods our experience with tax attributes expiring unused

and tax planning alternatives In making such judgments significant weight is given to evidence that can be

objectively verified See Note 12Income Taxes
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Shipping and Handling Costs

Costs incurred to deliver wholesale merchandise to customers are recorded in selling general and

administrative expense and totaled $13308 $13240 and $16382 for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Costs incurred to deliver retail merchandise to customers are also recorded in selling general and administrative

expense and totaled $4145 $3226 and $2371 for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Advertising

Costs incurred for producing and distributing advertising and advertising materials are expensed when

incurred and are included in selling general and administrative expenses Advertising costs totaled $8462

$7868 and $11014 in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Business Insurance Reserves

We have self-funded insurance programs in place to cover workers compensation and health insurance

claims These insurance programs are subject to various stop-loss limitations and are partially re-insured through

captive insurance program We accrue estimated losses using historical loss experience Although we believe

that the insurance reserves are adequate the reserve estimates are based on historical experience which may not

be indicative of current and future losses We adjust insurance reserves as needed in the event that future loss

experience differs from historical loss patterns

Directors Charitable Award Program

In 1992 we established the Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated Directors Charitable Award Program

the Program under which each eligible director of the Company could recommend that the Company make

donation of up to $500 to an eligible charity selected by the director The donations are to be made in the

directors name in ten equal annual installments with the first installment to be made as soon as practicable after

the directors death No new directors have been allowed to participate in the program since 1996 and our Board

of Directors may at any time terminate the program and cease making the designated contributions We elected

to fund 100% of the designated contributions under the Program with life insurance policies covering the

participating directors The participating directors are paired under second-to-die policies whereby the death

benefit for both directors is not received until the second of the pair is deceased Contributions made on behalf of

the first paired director to die are charged to an asset until the death benefits are received at the time of the

second directors death At that time the portion of the death benefit attributable to the second directors

designated contributions is recorded as liability against which the remaining contribution installments are

charged as paid At November 27 2010 there were remaining designated future contributions totaling $7050

associated with 15 current and former directors of which $1050 relates to three deceased directors for which

installment payments have commenced The total death benefit on the life insurance in force at November 27

2010 is $7500 All premiums required for the life insurance were paid in prior years
and no additional premium

payments will be required to keep the policies in force The net asset representing charitable contributions made

in advance of death benefits to be received and the cash surrender value of the related life insurance were $450

and $1677 respectively at November 27 2010 and $300 and $1697 respectively at November 28 2009 Both

amounts are included in other assets in the accompanying balance sheets

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the FASB issued authoritative guidance on the consolidation of VIEs which became effective

for our first quarter of fiscal 2010 This new guidance requires entities to perform qualitative analysis to
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determine whether the enterprises variable interest or interests give it controlling financial interest in variable

interest entity The enterprise is required to assess on an ongoing basis whether it is primary beneficiary or has

an implicit responsibility to ensure that variable interest entity operates as designed This guidance changes the

previous quantitative approach for determining the primary beneficiary to qualitative approach based on which

entity has the power to direct activities of variable interest entity that most significantly impact economic

performance and has the obligation to absorb losses or receive benefits that could be significant to the

variable
purpose entity In addition it requires enhanced disclosures that will provide investors with more

transparent information about an enterprises involvement with variable interest entity We have adopted these

provisions and there was no significant impact on our consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement Ofl Financial Accounting Standards No 14 1R Business

Combinations now codified primarily in ASC Topic 805 ASC 805 now requires that the acquisition method of

accounting instead of the purchase method be applied to all business combinations and that an acquirer is

identified in the process The guidance requires that fair market value be used to recognize assets and assumed

liabilities instead of the cost allocation method where the costs of an acquisition are allocated to individual assets

based on their estimated fair values Goodwill would be calculated as the excess purchase price over the fair

value of the assets acquired however negative goodwill will be recognized immediately as gain instead of

being allocated to individual assets acquired Costs of the acquisition will be recognized separately from the

business combination The end result is that the statement improves the comparability relevance and

completeness of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combination The guidance became

effective for us beginning in fiscal 2010 See Note 10 regarding the application of ASC 805 to the acquisition of

licensee stores during fiscal 2010

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASU No 2009-13 Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements

ASU 2009-13 and ASU No 2009-14 Certain Arrangements That Include Software Elements ASU
2009-14 ASU 2009-13 requires entities to allocate revenues in the absence of vendor-specific objective

evidence or third party evidence of selling price for deliverables using selling price hierarchy associated with

the relative selling price method ASU 2009-14 removes tangible products from the scope of software revenue

guidance and provides guidance on determining whether software deliverables in an arrangement that includes

tangible product are covered by the
scope

of the software revenue guidance ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14

should be applied on prospective basis for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal

years beginning on or after June 15 2010 with early adoption permitted We do not expect that the adoption of

ASU 2009-13 or ASU 2009-14 will have material impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial

condition

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-01 Equity Accounting for Distributions to Shareholders

with Components of Stock and Cash Topic 505 which clarifies that the stock portion of distribution to

shareholders that allow them to receive cash or stock with potential limitation on the total amount of cash that all

shareholders can elect to receive in the aggregate is considered share issuance that is reflected in earnings per

share prospectively and is not stock dividend This update became effective for our first quarter of fiscal 2010 The

adoption of ASU No 2010-01 did not have an impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-02 Consolidation Accounting and Reporting for

Decreases in Ownership of Subsidiarya Scope Clarification Topic 810 ASU 2010-02 clarifies Topic 810

implementation issues relating to decrease in ownership of subsidiary that is business or non-profit activity

This amendment affects entities that have previously adopted Topic 10-10 formally SFAS 160 This update

became effective for our first quarter of fiscal 2010 The adoption of ASU No 2010-02 did not have an impact

on our consolidated financial position or results of operations
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In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 20 10-06 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 820 Fair

Value Measurements and Disclosures related to disclosures about fair value measurements New disclosures will

require entities to disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level and Level fair

value measurements and to describe the reasons for the transfers and to present separately in the reconciliation for

fair value measurements in Level information about purchases sales issuances and settlements on gross basis

rather than as one net amount The ASU also amends ASC Subtopic 820-10 to clarify certain existing disclosures

regarding the level of disaggregation at which fair value measurements are provided for each class of assets and

liabilities and disclosures about inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value for both recurring and

nonrecurring fair value measurements that fall in either Level or Level The new disclosures and clarifications of

existing disclosures are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2009

except for the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements in the reconciliation of Level fair value

measurements which become effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 We implemented the

new disclosures and clarifications of existing disclosures beginning with our second quarter of fiscal 2010 and the

disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements in the reconciliation of Level fair value

measurements will be implemented beginning in our first quarter of fiscal 2012 The adoption of this guidance has

not had and is not expected to have material impact on our financial position or results of operations

In February 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-09 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 855

Subsequent Events to no longer require companies that file with the United States Securities and Exchange

Commission to indicate the date through which they have analyzed subsequent events This updated guidance

became effective immediately upon issuance therefore we adopted it as of the first quarter
of 2010

In July 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-20 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 310

Receivables related to disclosures about the credit quality of financing receivables and the allowance for credit

losses The new disclosures will require disaggregated information related to financing receivables and will

include for each class of financing receivables among other things rollforward for the allowance for credit

losses credit quality information impaired loan information modification information non-accrual and past-due

information The disclosures as of the end of reporting period are effective for interim and annual reporting

periods ending on or after December 15 2010 The disclosures about activity that occurs during reporting

period are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15 2010 In January

2011 ASU No 2011-01 delayed the effective date for certain requirements of ASU 2010-20 regarding

disclosures about troubled debt restructurings until guidance can be issued as to what constitutes troubled debt

restructuring Accordingly we will implement the guidance for period-end disclosures effective as of the end of

our first quarter of fiscal 2011 with the guidance for period activity disclosures to be implemented during our

second quarter of fiscal 2011 The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have material impact on our

financial position or results of operations

In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-28 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 350

IntangiblesGoodwill Other The amendments in ASU 20 10-28 affect all entities that have recognized

goodwill and have one or more reporting units whose carrying amount for purposes
of performing Step of the

goodwill impairment test is zero or negative The amendments in ASU 20 10-28 modify Step so that for those

reporting units an entity is required to perform Step of the goodwill impairment test if it is more likely than not

that goodwill impairment exists In determining whether it is more likely than not that goodwill impairment

exists an entity should consider whether there are any adverse qualitative factors indicating that an impairment

may exist The qualitative factors are consistent with existing guidance which requires that goodwill of

reporting unit be tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that

would more likely than not reduce the fair value of reporting unit below its carrying amount This guidance will

become effective for us at the beginning of our second quarter of fiscal 2011 The adoption of this guidance is not

expected to have material impact on our financial position or results of operations
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In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 20 10-29 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 805

Business Combinations The objective of ASU 20 10-29 is to address diversity in practice about the interpretation of

the pro forma revenue and earnings disclosure requirements for business combinations The amendments in ASU
2010-29 specify that if public entity presents comparative financial statements the entity should disclose revenue

and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combinations that occurred during the current year had

occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only The amendments also expand the

supplemental pro forma disclosures to include description of the nature and amount of material nonrecurring pro

forma adjustments directly attributable to the business combination included in the reported pro forma revenue and

earnings The amendments affect any public entity as defined by ASC 805 that enters into business combinations

that are material on an individual or aggregate basis This guidance will become effective for us for acquisitions

occurring on or after the beginning of our 2012 fiscal year We do not expect the adoption of this guidance will have

material impact upon our financial position or results of operations

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss is comprised of the following net of taxes

November 27 November 28
2010 2009

Actuarial adjustment to supplemental executive retirement defined

benefit plan $372 337

Unrealized holding gains 284 2163
Excess of additional pension liability over unamortized transition

obligation 339 382

$427 $2118

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of the following

November 27 November 28
2010 2009

Gross accounts receivable $38987 45.362

Allowance for doubtful accounts 7366 10.757

Net accounts receivable $31621 34605

Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts was as follows

2010 2009

Balance beginning of the year $10757 7987
Additions charged to expense 4671 8908
Write-offs 8062 6138

Balance end of the
year 7366 $10757

We believe that the carrying value of our net accounts receivable approximates fair value The inputs into

these fair value estimates reflect our market assumptions and are not observable Consequently the inputs are

considered to be Level as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements

and Disclosures See Note
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Inventories

Inventories consist of the following

November 27 November 28
2010 2009

Wholesale finished goods $24934 $19519

Work in process
244 199

Raw materials and supplies 6100 6299

Retail merchandise 18810 15386

Total inventories on first-in first-out method 50088 41403

LIFO adjustment 6550 6161
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory 1728 1854

$41810 $33388

During 2009 we liquidated certain LIFO inventories which decreased cost of saes by $1232 There were

no LIFO liquidations resulting in recognized benefits in either 2010 or 2008 We source significant amount of

our wholesale product from other countries During 2010 2009 and 2008 purchases from our two largest

vendors located in China and Vietnam were $24229 $19021 and $29687 respectively

We estimate an inventory reserve for excess quantities and obsolete items based on specific identification

and historical write-offs taking into account future demand market conditions and the respective valuations at

LIFO The need for these reserves is primarily driven by the normal product life cycle As products mature and

sales volumes decline we rationalize our product offerings to respond to consumer tastes and keep our product

lines fresh If actual demand or market conditions in the future are less favorable than those estimated additional

inventory write-downs may be required In determining reserves we calculate separate reserves on our wholesale

and retail inventories Our wholesale inventories tend to carry the majority of the reserves for excess quantities

and obsolete inventory due to the nature of our distribution model These wholesale reserves primarily represent

design and/or style obsolescence Typically product is not shipped to our retail warehouses until consumer has

ordered and paid deposit for the product We do not typically hold retail inventory for stock purposes

Consequently floor sample inventory and inventory for delivery to customers account for the majority of our

inventory at retail Retail reserves are based on accessory and clearance floor sample inventory in our stores and

any inventory that is not associated with specific customer order in our retail warehouses

Activity in the reserves for excess quantities and obsolete inventory by segment are as follows

VVholesale Retail

Segment Segment Total

Balance at November 29 2008 2071 434 2505

Additions charged to expense 2272 491 2763

Write-offs 2878 536 3414

Balance at November 28 2009 1465 389 1854

Additions charged to expense
1588 226 1814

Write-offs 1534 406 1940

Balance at November 272010 1519 $209 $1728
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Notes Receivable

Notes receivable consists of the following

November 27 November 28

2010 2009

Notes receivable
$14914 $19411

Allowance for doubtful accounts and discounts on notes receivable 6748 8950

Notes receivable net
8166 10461

Less current portion of notes receivable 658 2152

Long term notes receivable 7508 $8309

Our notes receivable which bear interest at rates ranging from 2% to 6% consist primarily of amounts due

from our licensees from loans made by the Company to help licensees fund their operations Approximately 61

and 64% of our notes receivable represent conversions of past due accounts receivable at November 27 2010 and

November 28 2009 respectively The net carrying value of notes receivable that are considered to be on

non-accrual status for the recognition of interest at November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 was $2277 and

$3083 respectively

Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts and discounts was as follows

2010 2009

Balance beginning of the year
8950 6596

Additions charged to expense
1896 6297

Write-offs
4027 3813

Amortization of discounts 71 130

Balance end of the year
6748 $8950

We amortize the related note discount over the contractual term of the note and cease amortizing the

discount to interest income when the present value of expected future cash flows is less than the carrying value of

the note Interest income on the notes which is included in other loss net was $463 $681 and $705 for fiscal

2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

During fiscal 2009 we converted past due trade accounts receivable and refinanced an existing note

receivable of three licensees As part of the improvement plans with one of our licensees we converted $1100 of

past due trade accounts receivable and refinanced an existing note with remaining balance of $224 into

$1324 long-term note bearing interest at 4.75% This note requires interest only payments through 2011 and

interest and principal payments due monthly through its maturity on December 31 2016 Additionally we

converted $550 and $250 of past due trade accounts receivable for two licensees to 4.75% long-term interest

bearing notes The $550 note requires interest only payments through March 16 2012 and principal and interest

payments due monthly through its maturity date of March 16 2015 The $250 note requires interest only

payments through March 16 2011 with the remaining interest and principal due on April 16 2011

The initial carrying value of the notes is determined using present value techniques which consider the fair

market rate of interest based on the licensees risk profile and estimated cash flows to be received We

considered the stated interest rates to be below market due to the overall lack of availability of credit in the

financial markets The following table presents summary fair value information at the inception of these notes

Face Value of

Note Receivable 1iscount Rate Fair Value

$1324 19.50% $672

550 5.25% 539

250 19.61% 187
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The estimated fair value of our notes receivable portfolio was $8212 at November 27 2010 and $10208 at

November 28 2009 The inputs into these fair value calculations reflect our market assumptions and are not

observable Consequently the inputs are considered to be Level as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC

Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures See Note

On quarterly basis we examine these notes for evidence of impairment considering factors such as

licensee capitalization projected operating performance the viability of the market in which the licensee

operates and the licensees operating history including our cash receipts from the licensee licensee sales and any

underlying collateral After considering these factors should we believe that all or portion of the expected cash

flows attributable to the note receivable will not be received we record an impairment charge on the note by

estimating future cash flows and discounting them at the effective interest rate Any difference between the

estimated discounted cash flows and the carrying value of the note is recorded as an increase to the allowance for

doubtful accounts

These notes as well as our accounts receivable are generally secured by the filing of security statements in

accordance with the Uniform Commercial Code and/or real estate owned by the maker of the note and in some

cases personal guarantees by our licensees

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following

November 27 November 28
2010 2009

Land 8549 11297

Buildings and leasehold improvements 64733 62392

Machinery and equipment 69080 78464

142362 152153

Less accumulated depreciation 96112 101517

46250 50636

Depreciation expense for property and equipment was $4917 $5507 and $5979 in fiscal 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively The net book value of property and equipment utilized by Company-owned stores for 2010

and 2009 was $33789 and $37263 respectively

Financial Instruments Investments and Fair Value Measurements

Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable notes receivable

investment securities cost and equity method investments accounts payable and long-term debt Because of their

short maturity the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable and accounts payable

approximate fair value Our cost and equity method investments generally involve entities for which it is not

practical to determine fair values
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Investments

Our investments consist of our interest in Fortress formerly part of the Alternative Asset Fund which was

dissolved on December 31 2009 and portfolio of available-for-sale marketable securities as follows

November 27 November 28
2010 2009

Available-for-sale securities $14279 $13886

Fortress 832

Alternative Asset Fund 1045

$15111 $14931

Fortress Alternative Asset Fund

In 2008 we requested that our general partner begin to liquidate all of our investments in the Alternative

Asset Fund During fiscal 2009 we received $19258 for liquidations associated with various investments in the

Fund At November 28 2009 the Alternative Asset Fund held only $749 investment in Fortress along with

some remaining cash that was distributed in early 2010 Due to the level of the remaining assets in the

Alternative Asset Fund the Company and Private Advisors L.L.C dissolved the partnership effective

December 2009 and the Alternative Asset Funds remaining investment interest in Fortress was transferred to

the Company

Fortress is in the process of liquidating all of its underlying investments to wind down the fund Once fully

liquidated which is not expected in the near term we will be paid our pro rata share of the proceeds We will

continue to monitor the progress of the fund liquidation and adjust our valuation as necessary

Our investment in Fortress is valued at fair value primarily based on the net asset values which are

determined by the fund manager Consequently the inputs are considered to be Level as specified in the fair

value hierarchy in ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Available-for-Sale Securities

Historically our marketable securities have been held by two different money managers and consisted of

combination of equity and fixed income securities including money market funds During the second quarter of

2009 we liquidated our equity holdings with one of the managers and reinvested the proceeds in various money

market funds individual bonds and bond funds During the first quarter of 2010 we liquidated the equity

holdings with the other manager and reinvested those funds in money market accounts

We classify our marketable securities as available-for-sale which are reported at fair value Unrealized

holding gains and losses net of the related income tax effect on available-for-sale securities are excluded from

income and are reported as other comprehensive income in stockholders equity Realized gains and losses from

securities classified as available-for-sale are included in income We measure the fair value of our marketable

securities in accordance with ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Although we have the ability to buy and sell the individual marketable securities we are required to

maintain certain dollar amount in those brokerage accounts subject to the Securities Account Control

Agreement as part of the revolving credit facility see also Note 13
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As of November 27 2010 available-for-sale securities consisted of the following

Cost
Gross Unrealized

Market

Basis Gains Losses Value

Money market shares $11368 $11368

Bond mutual funds 990 224 1214

Government agency obligations 761 45 806

US Treasury Obligations 876 15 891

$13995 $284 $14279

As of November 28 2009 available-for-sale securities consisted of the following

Cost
Gross Unrealized

Market

Basis Gains Losses Value

Equity securities 5318 $1913 $21 7210

Money market shares 3891 3891

Bond mutual funds 984 202 1186

Government agency obligations 1061 52 1113

US Treasury Obligations 469 17 486

$11723 $2184 $21 $13886

The realized earnings from our marketable securities portfolio include realized gains and losses based upon

specific identification and dividend and interest income Realized earnings were $2272 $764 and $1447 for

fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Realized earnings for year ended November 27 2010 include $1913 of

gains and $21 of losses previously recorded in other comprehensive income These amounts are recorded in

income loss from investments in our consolidated statements of operations Of the $1697 in fixed income

securities $556 matures in less than five years with the remainder being long-term and maturing in greater than

20 years

In accordance with ASC Topic 320 InvestmentsDebt and Equity Securities we review our marketable

securities to determine whether decline in fair value of security below the cost basis is other than temporary

Should the decline be considered other than temporary we write down the cost basis of the security and include

the loss in current earnings as opposed to an unrealized holding loss Consequently we recorded losses that were

considered to be other than temporary of $1255 and $3296 for 2009 and 2008 respectively No losses for other

than temporary impairments were recognized during the year ended November 27 2010

Fair Value Measurement

The Company accounts for items measured at fair value in accordance with ASC Topic 820 Fair Value

Measurements and Disclosures ASC 820s valuation techniques are based on observable and unobservable

inputs Observable inputs reflect readily obtainable data from independent sources while unobservable inputs

reflect our market assumptions ASC 820 classifies these inputs into the following hierarchy

Level InputsQuoted prices for identical instruments in active markets

Level InputsQuoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical or

similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or

whose significant value drivers are observable
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Level InputsInstruments with primarily unobservable value drivers

The fair values of our marketable securities and our investment in Fortress based on the level of inputs are

summarized below

Level Level Level Fair Value

Assets

Marketable Securities $14279 $14279

Investment in Fortress 832 832

Total Assets $14279 $832 $15111

The table below provides reconciliation of all assets measured at fair value on recurring basis which use

level three or significant unobservable inputs for the period of November 28 2009 to November 27 2010

Fair Value Measurements Using

Significant Unobservable Inputs

Level Inputs

Investment in

Investment in Alternative

Fortress Asset Fund

Balance at November 28 2009 $1045

Total gains losses included in earnings related to change in

underlying net assets 83 46
Transfer of investment 749 749
Redemptions 250
Transfers in and/or out of Level

Balance November 27 2010 $832

The carrying values and approximate fair values of financial instruments as of November 27 2010 and

November 28 2009 were as follows

November 27 2010 November 28 2009

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

value value value value

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $11071 11071 $23221 $23.22

Accounts receivable net 31621 31621 34605 34605

Notes receivable net 8166 8212 10461 10208

Investments 15111 15111 14931 14931

Liabilities

Accounts payable $24893 24893 $14711 $14.71

Real estate notes payable 13816 13556 21346 20784

Bank debt 15000 15000

Lease/loan guarantee reserves 2304 2304 3366 3366
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Income from the Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act

In 2000 the United States Congress passed the Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act CDSOA The

Act requires that revenues from antidumping and countervailing duties on designated imports be distributed on an

annual basis to the domestic producers that were either petitioners or interested parties supporting the petition that

resulted in duties being levied The CDSOA originally targeted the steel industry and eventually spread to other

industries including the furniture industry specifically targeting wooden bedroom furniture produced in China We

supported the petition on wooden bedroom furniture produced in China We recognized $488 $1627 and $2122 of

CDSOA income in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively In 2006 legislation was enacted that ends CDSOA

distributions for monies collected after September 30 2007 although distributions of monies collected prior to that

date have continued during 2008 2009 and 2010 final distribution of the CDSOA funds is expected to be made

in late 2011 however it has not been determined what our share of that distribution will be if any

10 Licensee Acquisitions and Goodwill

As we continually monitor business relationships with our licensees we may determine from time to time

that it is in our best interest to acquire licensees operations in order to mitigate certain risks associated with the

poor performance or potential failure of licensee Such risks include loss of receivables or underlying collateral

potential impairment of the value of our investments in real estate used by licensee or exposure to contingent

liabilities under lease guarantees and potential harm to our market share and brand integrity within licensees

market In addition we are sometimes approached by our licensees to acquire all or certain stores operated by the

licensee We evaluate such opportunities considering among other things the viability of the market and our

participation in the store real estate

During fiscal 2010 we acquired 100% controlling interests in eleven retail stores operated by eight licensees

in Maryland Missouri Illinois New York Alabama Mississippi California Delaware and North Carolina Nine

stores were acquired pursuant to strict foreclosure and settlement agreements on the underlying assets subject to

the terms of our security agreements with the licensees One store was acquired from licensee following its

request for buyout where we already owned the real estate Another acquired location had been previously

closed and liquidated by the former licensee During fiscal 2009 we acquired nine stores while in fiscal 2008 we

acquired two stores Many of these acquisitions were funded through the exchange of existing accounts

receivable for the net assets acquired from the licensee

The fiscal 2010 acquisitions were accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 805 Business

Combinations which we adopted effective as of the beginning of the year Acquisitions prior to fiscal 2010 were

accounted for in accordance with FASB Statement No 141 Business Combinations As required by ASC 805

the settlements of certain pre-existing relationships were excluded from the value of the consideration exchanged

in the transactions and gains or losses on such settlements were recognized The primary relationships settled

involved the write off of accounts and notes receivable which had been foreclosed upon pursuant to security

agreements with the licensees as well as the assumption of certain guaranteed obligations of the licensees

Remaining receivables not foreclosed upon were given as consideration in exchange for net assets acquired As

result of these settlements during 2010 we recognized bad debt expense of $2800 and loan and lease guarantee

expense of $839
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The following table summarizes the net assets acquired and consideration given in the store acquisitions

2010 2009 2008

Net assets acquired

Inventory 3319 2798 493

Property and equipment/other 3113 841 5736
Goodwill 435 532

Customer deposits and other accrued expenses 3738 1225 5428

Total net assets acquired 3129 2414 1333

Consideration given

Accounts receivable 2751 1933 $1117

Cash 378 481 216

Total consideration 3129 2414 1333

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed were measured at fair value in accordance with ASC 805

Acquired inventory is valued at expected retail sales price less an allowance for direct selling costs and profit

thereon Acquired property and equipment are valued based upon our estimate of replacement cost less an

allowance for age and condition at the time of acquisition Customer deposits and accrued expenses are expected

to be settled at face value within short period following acquisition therefore face value is assumed to

approximate fair value The inputs into these fair value calculations reflect our market assumptions and are not

observable Consequently the inputs are considered to be Level as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC

820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures See Note None of the goodwill acquired will be deductible

for income tax purposes

The pro forma impact of the acquisitions on current and prior periods is not presented as we believe it is

impractical to do so We were not able to compile what we believed to be complete accurate and reliable

accounting information to use as basis for pro forma presentations without an unreasonable effort Net sales and

operating losses generated by these stores subsequent to their acquisition for the year in which they were

acquired were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Net sales $16507 $1 1841 29

Operating losses 1972 1588 130

The carrying value of our goodwill which is included in other long-term assets in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheets by reporting unit and the activity for fiscal 2010 and 2009 is as follows

Wholesale Retail Total

BalanceasofNovember292008 $383 $149 $532

Goodwill from store acquisition

Impairment charge 383 149 532

Balance as of November 28 2009

Goodwill from store acquisition 276 159 435

Impairment charge

Balance as of November 27 2010 276 $159 $435

We perform our annual goodwill impairment review as of the beginning of our fiscal fourth quarter Based

on our discounted cash flow analysis the sharp decline in our market capitalization over the last half of fiscal
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2008 and the first quarter of fiscal 2009 as well as the continuing recessionary environment for the home

furnishings industry we concluded that our goodwill acquired prior to 2009 was impaired and recorded charge

of $532 for fiscal 2009 The impairment charge is included in restructuring impaired asset charges other unusual

gain net in our consolidated statement of operations See Note 16

11 Unconsolidated Affiliated Companies

International Home Furnishings Center

The International Home Furnishings Center IHFC owns and leases showroom space in High Point

North Carolina Our ownership interest is 46.9% and is accounted for using the equity method Our investment

reflects credit balance due to our cumulative receipt of dividends exceeding our cumulative portion of IHFCs

earnings The credit balance was $7356 and $10954 at November 27 2010 and November 28 2009

respectively and is reflected in the liabilities section in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets This

balance resulted from IHFCs refinancing of its real estate based on the market value of the property and using

the proceeds to pay special dividend to its owners We also lease 28576 square feet of showroom space from

IHFC at what we believe to be competitive market rates

Our share of earnings which is recorded in income from unconsolidated affiliated companies net in our

consolidated statement of operations and dividends from this investment were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Earnings Recognized $4535 $4705 $6424

Dividends Received 937 3749 6091

Summarized financial information for IHFC is as follows

2010 2009 2008

Current assets 22575 21002 14242

Non-current assets 43892 43448 46689

Current liabilities 13163 9371 12206

Long-term liabilities 105526 113000 110485

Revenues 39518 40618 45718

Net income 9680 10042 13713

The complete financial statements of IHFC are included in our Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission

Zenith Freight Lines LLC

We own 49% of Zenith Freight Lines LLC Zenith which hauls freight and warehouses inventory for

the Company Our investment balance was $5147 at November 27 2010 and $4982 at November 28 2009 and

is recorded in other long-term assets We paid Zenith approximately $19286 $19469 and $24006 for freight

expense and logistical services in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively At November 27 2010 and November 28

2009 we owed Zenith $1512 and $1397 respectively for services rendered to us We believe the transactions

with Zenith are at current market rates We recorded the following earnings losses in income from

unconsolidated affiliated companies net in our consolidated statements of operations

2010 2009 2008

Earnings Loss Recognized $165 $362 $124

Dividends Received 98
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The components of the income tax provision benefit are as follows

Current

2010 2009 2008

2008

34.0%

8.2
5.2

98.2

0.7

2.6
12.5

1.9

72.3%

Federal 10 $1777 740
State 196 23 282

Deferred

Increase decrease in valuation allowance 2962 9553 23383

Federal 2195 81 12 4758
State 767 1441 1222

Total 206 $l754 $16945

reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective income tax rate as percentage of

income before income taxes is as follows

2010 2009

Statutory federal income tax rate 34.0% 34.0%

Dividends received deduction 71.6 5.8

Goodwill impairment 0.7

Change in income tax valuation allowance 134.2 39.1

Change in income tax reserves 13.2 0.4

State income tax net of federal benefit 20.1 5.0

Write-off of deferred tax assets related to equity method investees

Other 4.6 1.7

Effective income tax rate 9.3% 7.l%
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The income tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards which give rise to significant portions

of the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are as follows

November 27 November 28
2010 2009

Deferred income tax assets

Trade accounts receivable 2760 4029

Inventories 1957 1801

Property and equipment 2938 2043

Notes receivable 2528 3353

Retirement benefits 4706 4995

Federal net operating loss and credit carryforwards 9440 6518

State net operating loss carryforwards 3908 3200

Other than temporary impairment of marketable securities 55 495

Net distributions from affiliates in excess of income 4142 3733

Lease termination accruals 1066 1311

Capital loss carryforward 1522

Other 2954 3251

Gross deferred income tax assets 37976 34729

Valuation allowance 36806 33003

Total deferred income tax assets 1170 1726

Deferred income tax liabilities

Prepaid expenses and other 118 104

Unrealized holding gains net 106 810

Total gross deferred income tax liabilities 224 914

Net deferred income tax assets 946 812

Due to the losses incurred in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 we remain in cumulative loss position for the

past three years which is considered significant negative evidence that is difficult to overcome more likely

than not standard through objectively verifiable data While our long-term financial outlook remains positive

we concluded that our ability to rely on our long-term outlook and forecasts as to future taxable income was

limited due to uncertainty created by the weight of the negative evidence As result we have recorded

valuation allowance on certain of the deferred tax assets The following table represents summary of the

valuation allowances against deferred tax assets

2010 2009 2008

Balance beginning of the year
$33003 $24430 1047

Additions charged to expense 2962 9553 23383

Deductions reducing expense

Deductions recorded as component of other comprehensive income loss 841 980
_______

Balance end of the year
$36806 $33003 $24430

In November 2009 Congress passed the Worker Homeownership and Business Assistance Act of 2009

the Act which among other things extends the general carryback period for 2008 or 2009 NOLs from two

years to up to five Eligible corporations may elect to carry
back applicable NOLs three four or five years

An

applicable NOL is an NOL that arises in tax year either beginning or ending in 2008 or 2009 These
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provisions of the Act also suspend the 90% limit on the utilization of alternative tax NOLs against alternative

minimum taxable income for all years in the carryback period In the case of an election to carry back the

applicable NOL to the fifth preceding year the amount of the NOL carryback that may be applied in that fifth

carryback year is limited to 50% of taxable income of that fifth preceding year Prior to the passage of the Act

we had exhausted our availability for loss carrybacks As result of applying the provisions of the Act we

recorded tax benefit of $1673 in 2009 associated with the additional carryback availability

We have federal net operating loss carryforward for tax purposes of $18108 to offset future taxable

income which expires in 2030 We also have state net operating loss carryforwards available to offset future

taxable state income of $63729 which expire in varying amounts between 2011 and 2030 Realization is

dependent on generating sufficient taxable income prior to expiration of the loss carryforwards

Net income taxes paid net refunds received during 2010 2009 and 2008 were $1582 $3246 and

$295 respectively

As of November 27 2010 the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits was approximately $1565

exclusive of interest and penalties Of this balance if we were to prevail on all unrecognized tax benefits

recorded approximately $619 would benefit the effective tax rate As of November 28 2009 the gross amount

of unrecognized tax benefits was approximately $1580 exclusive of interest and penalties Of this balance if we

were to prevail on all unrecognized tax benefits recorded approximately $768 would benefit the effective tax

rate We regularly evaluate assess and adjust the related liabilities in light of changing facts and circumstances

which could cause the effective tax rate to fluctuate from period to period

The following table summarizes the activity related to our gross unrecognized tax benefits

2010 2009

Balance beginning of the year $1580 $1588

Gross increases 134 40

Gross decreases primarily due to the expiration of statutes 149 48

Balance end of the year $1565 $1580

We recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense During

fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 we recognized $112 $47 and $54 of interest expense recovery and $30 $11 and

$22 of penalty expense recovery respectively related to the unrecognized benefits noted above in our

consolidated statement of operations At November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 the consolidated balance

sheets include accrued interest of $159 and $271 and penalties of $143 and $173 respectively due to

unrecognized tax benefits

Significant judgment is required in evaluating the Companys federal and state tax positions and in the

determination of its tax provision Despite our belief that the liability for unrecognized tax benefits is adequate it

is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of the resolution of any particular tax matter We may
adjust these liabilities as relevant circumstances evolve such as guidance from the relevant tax authority or

resolution of issues in the courts These adjustments are recognized as component of income tax expense
in the

period in which they are identified The Company also cannot predict when or if
any

other future tax payments

related to these tax positions may occur

Currently there are no examinations in process of
any

of the Companys income tax returns We remain

subject to examination for tax years 2007 through 2009 for all of our major tax jurisdictions
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13 Real Estate Notes Payable and Bank Debt

The real estate notes payable and bank debt is summarized as follows

November 27 November 28
2010 2009

Real estate notes payable $13816 $21346

Bankdebt
_____

15000

13816 36346

Less

Current portion of real estate notes payable 9521 4393

4295 $31953

Real Estate Notes Payable

Certain of our retail real estate properties have been financed through commercial mortgages which are

payable over periods of one to twenty years and have interest rates ranging from 6.73% to 8.28% The weighted

average interest rate is 7.70% These mortgages are collateralized by the respective properties with net book

value of $21721 at November 27 2010 on first priority basis

The fair value of these mortgages was $13556 and $20784 at November 27 2010 and November 28 2009

respectively In determining the fair value the Company utilized current market interest rates for similar

instruments The inputs into these fair value calculations reflect our market assumptions and are not observable

Consequently the inputs are considered to be Level as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC 820 Fair

Value Measurements and Disclosures See Note

Maturities of real estate notes payable are as follows

Fiscal 2011 9521

Fiscal 2012 172

Fiscal 2013 184

Fiscal 2014 196

Fiscal 2015 210

Thereafter 3533

$13816

Bank Debt

Our revolving credit facility as amended on October 2009 contains among other provisions minimum

required level of Tangible Net Worth as defined in the credit agreement of $90000 for 2010 It also provides for

variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.75% with 4.25% minimum rate and allows borrowings of up to

$30000 subject to the limitations of borrowing base calculation as set forth in the credit agreement

Borrowings under the facility are secured by pledge of certain of our marketable securities and substantially all

of our receivables and inventories At November 27 2010 we have approximately $23778 available for

borrowing under the facility after deducting amounts for outstanding letters of credit and guarantees under the

licensee loan program In addition to the extent the value of our marketable securities falls below $16000 our

Borrowing Base as defined is decreased by 125% of the difference between $16000 and the actual value of

those securities The facility which was to have expired on November 30 2010 has been extended for three
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months to March 2011 Because the facility bears interest at variable rate which fluctuates with credit market

conditions the fair value of this obligation is considered to be approximately equal to its carrying amount The

inputs into this fair value estimate reflect our market assumptions and are not observable Consequently the

inputs are considered to be Level as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements

and Disclosures See Note

Total interest paid including bank and mortgage debt during fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 was $1830

$2396 and $2662 respectively

14 Post-Employment Benefit Obligations

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan

We have an unfunded Supplemental Retirement Income Plan the Supplemental Plan that covers one

current and certain former executives Upon retirement the Supplemental Plan provides for lifetime monthly

payments in an amount equal to 65% of the participants final
average compensation as defined in the

Supplemental Plan which is reduced by certain social security benefits to be received and other benefits

provided by us The Supplemental Plan also provides death benefit that is divided into prior to retirement

death which
pays

the beneficiary 50% of final average annual compensation for period of 120 months and

post-retirement death which
pays

the beneficiary 200% of final average compensation in single payment

We own life insurance policies with current net death benefit of $4472 on these executives and expect to

substantially fund this death benefit through the proceeds received upon the death of the executive Funding for

the remaining cash flows is expected to be provided through operations There are no benefits payable as result

of termination of employment for any reason other than death or retirement other than change of control

provision which provides for the immediate vesting and payment of the retirement benefit under the

Supplemental Plan in the event of an employment termination resulting from change of control
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Summarized information for the plan measured as of the end of each year presented is as follows

2010 2009

Change in Benefit Obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial losses gains
Benefits paid

Projected benefit obligation at end of year Funded Status

Accumulated Benefit Obligation

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income

Transition obligation

Actuarial loss gain

Net amount recognized

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and accumulated other

comprehensive income

Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost

Service cost

Interest cost

Amortization of transition obligation

Net periodic pension cost

Assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost

Discount rate

Increase in future compensation levels

Estimated Future Benefit Payments with mortality

Fiscal 2011

Fiscal 2012

Fiscal 2013

Fiscal 2014

Fiscal 2015

Fiscal 2016 through 2020

Deferred Compensation Plan

846 2190

8020 7667

8866 9857

1175 579

5.25% 5.25% 6.25%

3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

We have an unfunded Deferred Compensation Plan that covers one current and certain former executives

and provides for voluntary deferral of compensation This plan has been frozen with no additional participants or

benefits permitted We recognized expense of $376 $377 and $456 in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

associated with the plan Our liability under this plan was $2985 and $3174 as of November 27 2010 and

November 28 2009 respectively and is reflected in post employment benefit obligations

9857

44

422

709

2166

8866

8619

$10671

35

627

226
1250

9857

9572

339

372

711

382

337

45

2010 2009 2008

44

422

42

508

35

627

42

704

54

632

42

728

846

821

795

766

736

3189
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Defined Contribution Plan

We have qualified defined contribution plan Employee Savings/Retirement Plan that covers substantially

all employees who elect to participate and have fulfilled the necessary service requirements Employee

contributions to the Plan are matched at the rate of 50% of up to 8% of gross pay regardless of years of service

however we suspended the matching contributions effective during the first quarter of 2009 continuing through

fiscal 2010 The Plan incorporates provisions of Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code Employer

matching contributions to the Plan for fiscal 2009 and 2008 were approximately $29 and $636 respectively

15 Capital Stock and Stock Compensation

We account for our stock-based employee and director compensation plans in accordance with ASC 718

CompensationStock Compensation ASC 718 requires recognition of the cost of employee services received in

exchange for an award of equity instruments in the financial statements over the period the employee is required

to perform the services in exchange for the award presumptively the vesting period on straight-line basis Our

results of operations for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 include $376 $183 and $252 respectively of compensation

expense related to restricted stock and stock options

Stock Option Plans

In 1993 we adopted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors which was amended in 2000 and expired in

2003 Under this stock option plan we reserved for issuance 125000 shares of common stock including an

additional 50000 shares of common stock that were authorized for issuance in 2001 These options are

exercisable for 10 years commencing six months after the date of grant No shares are available for grant under

this plan

In 1997 we adopted an Employee Stock Plan the 1997 Plan and reserved for issuance 950000 shares of

common stock An additional 500000 shares of common stock were authorized for issuance in 2000 In addition

the terms of the 1997 Plan allow for the re-issuance of any stock options which have been forfeited before being

exercised Options granted under the 1997 Plan may be for such terms and exercised at such times as determined

by the Organization Compensation and Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors Vesting periods

typically range from one to three years There are no shares available for grant under the 1997 Plan at

November 27 2010 however up to 500000 shares associated with outstanding grants under the 1997 may
become available for grant under the 2010 Plan see below

In 2005 we adopted Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan the Incentive Plan and reserved

100000 shares of common stock for grant The Incentive Plan authorized incentive awards in the form of

restricted stock or stock grants All Directors of the Company who are not full-time employees of the Company

are eligible to receive incentive awards under the Incentive Plan Shares available for grant under the Incentive

Plan were 10087 and 27615 at November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 respectively

On April 14 2010 our shareholders approved the Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated 2010 Stock

Incentive Plan the 2010 Plan All present and future non-employee directors key employees and outside

consultants for the Company are eligible to receive incentive awards under the 2010 Plan Our Organization

Compensation and Nominating Committee the Compensation Committee selects eligible key employees and

outside consultants to receive awards under the 2010 Plan in its discretion Our Board of Directors or any

committee designated by the Board of Directors selects eligible non-employee directors to receive awards under

the 2010 Plan in its discretion Five hundred thousand 500000 shares of common stock are reserved for

issuance under the 2010 Plan In addition up to 500000 shares that are represented by outstanding awards under
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the 1997 Employee Stock Plan which are forfeited expire or are canceled after the effective date of the 2010

Plan will be added to the reserve and may be used for new awards under the 2010 Plan Participants may receive

the following types of incentive awards under the 2010 Plan stock options stock appreciation rights payment

shares restricted stock restricted stock units and performance shares Stock options may be incentive stock

options or non-qualified stock options Stock appreciation rights may be granted in tandem with stock options or

as freestanding award Non-employee directors and outside consultants are eligible to receive restricted stock

and restricted stock units only We expect to issue new common stock upon the exercise of options

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing

model The risk free rate is based on the U.S Treasury rate for the expected life at the time of grant volatility is

based on the average long-term implied volatilities of peer companies the expected life is based on the estimated

average of the life of options using the simplified method and forfeitures are estimated on the date of grant based

on certain historical data We utilize the simplified method to determine the expected life of our options due to

insufficient exercise activity during recent years as basis from which to estimate future exercise patterns During

the third quarter of 2010 our Compensation Committee authorized the issuance of 172000 stock options from the

2010 Plan to certain of our key employees The stock options vest ratably over four-year period and have 10-year

contractual terms The following table sets forth the weighted average fair value of options granted during 2010 and

the weighted average assumptions used for such grants there were no grants made in 2009 or 2008

Fair value of options on grant date 2.55

Expected life of options in years 6.25

Risk-free interest rate 2.5%

Expected volatility 60.0%

Dividend yield
0.0%
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summary of the foregoing plans at November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and November 29 2008 and

changes during the fiscal periods then ended is presented in the table below

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining

Number of Price Contractual Average
Shares Per Share Life Years Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at November 24 2007 1490685 $18.64

Granted

Exercised 1000 10.54

Forfeited/Expired 258047 29.71

Outstanding at November 29 2008 .. 1231638 16.33

Exercisable at November 29 2008 1014311 $16.94

Available for grant at November 29 2008 949479

Outstanding at November 29 2008 1231638 $16.33

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited/Expired 184000 18.26

Outstanding at November 28 2009 1047638 $16.00

Exercisable at November 28 2009 938972 $16.28

Available for grant at November 28 2009 1133479

Outstanding at November 28 2009 1047638 $16.00

Granted 172000 4.38

Exercised

Forfeited/Expired 210124 14.73

Outstanding at November 27 2010 1009514 $14.28

Exercisable at November 27 2010 837514 $16.31

Available for grant at November 27 2010 330000

Additional information regarding outstanding stock options outstanding at November 27 2010 is as follows

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average
Remaining Weighted Average Weighted Average

Range of Contractual Exercise Exercise

Exercise Prices Shares Life Years Price Shares Price

3.23 6.45 172000 9.6 4.38

6.45 9.67

9.68$12.90 159000 6.8 10.61 159000 10.61

$12.91 $16.13 270514 2.3 14.73 270514 14.73

$16.14$19.35 150000 5.6 16.96 150000 16.96

$19.36$22.58 258000 3.2 21.11 258000 21.11

1009514 837514
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Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

In thousands except share and per share data

As of November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 there were 172000 and 109000 unvested stock options

and $402 and $152 respectively of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options

granted under the Plans Substantially all of these options vest over four
years

with 25% vesting on each

anniversary date

The weighted average grant date fair value of these unvested options at November 27 2010 and

November 28 2009 was $2.55 and $2.22 respectively As of November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 there

were 837514 and 938972 vested stock options with weighted average grant date fair value of $3.75 and $3.90

respectively The weighted average grant date fair value of options forfeited during 2010 and 2009 was $3.63 and

$4.98 respectively The aggregate intrinsic value of both vested and unvested options at November 27 2010 and

November 28 2009 was zero

The following restricted stock awards were granted during 2010 and remain outstanding at November 27

2010

Share Value

Restricted at Grant Restriction

Shares Date Per Period

Grant Date Granted Share Years

May32010 17528 $5.99

July 14 2010 43000 $4.38

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In 2000 we adopted and implemented an Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP that allows eligible

employees to purchase limited number of shares of our stock at 85% of market value Under the ESPP we sold

43730 48726 and 25308 shares to employees in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively which resulted in an

immaterial amount of compensation expense

Shareholders Rights Plan

Our Board of Directors adopted Shareholders Rights Plan in 1998 If person or group acquires beneficial

ownership of 20% or more of the common stock outstanding each right distributed under the plan will entitle its

holder other than such person or group to purchase at the rights exercise price certain number of shares of

our Common Stock other securities or property
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Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

In thousands except share and per share data

16 Restructuring asset impairment and other charges

The following table summarizes the restructuring asset impairment charges and other unusual gain by year

2010 2009 2908

Restructuring asset impairment charges and unusual gain net

Impairment of goodwill See note 10 532 3548

Impairment of leasehold improvements 1068 624

Impairment of other intangibles 240

Asset impairment charges associated with plant closures 485

Supply contract termination costs associated with fiberboard plant closure 408

Severance 494

Gain on sale of the airplane
_____-

1342

$2987 3070

Lease exit costs $2434 642

Proxy defense costs 1418

Total restructuring asset impairment charges and other unusual gain by segment are as follows

2010 2009 2008

Wholesale $2028 $2446
Retail 959 624

$2987 $3070

The following table summarizes the activity related to our accrued lease exit costs

2010 2009

Balance beginning of the
year 3499 2325

Provisions associated with corporate store and retail office closures 2434
Provisions made to adjust previous estimates 736 334

Payments on unexpired leases 1488 1308
Payment to terminate lease commitment 400
Accretion of interest on obligations 100 114

Balance end of the year 2847 3499

Current portion included in other accrued liabilities 889 $1035

Long-term portion included in other long-term liabilities 1958 2464

2847 3499

Fiscal 2009

In 2009 we recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of $1068 for the write-off of the remaining

leasehold improvements for our Arlington Texas and Aipharetta Georgia retail stores as well as the closure of

our retail office in Greensboro North Carolina Also included in that amount was non-cash charge to write

down the carrying value of our long-lived assets associated with an underperforming retail location
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Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

In thousands except share and per share data

We recorded $485 non-cash charge to write-down the value of the property and equipment as result of

the fiberboard plant closure in the fourth quarter of 2009 In addition we recorded $408 charge associated with

the termination of power supply contract for the fiberboard plant This amount was paid out in 2010

Lastly we recorded severance charges of $320 associated with reduction in workforce announced in

March 2009 and $174 associated with the fiberboard plant closure

These charges were based on ultimate payment amounts and approximated fair value These amounts were

determined based on Level inputs which include our judgment about future cash flows and other considerations

Fiscal 2008

During 2008 we recorded $3548 charge for the impairment of goodwill related to our wholesale reporting

unit see Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion We also recorded an additional

impairment charge of $240 related to other intangibles During 2008 we also recorded $624 to write-off the

leasehold improvements and $642 for lease exit costs related to the closure of corporate retail store As part of

our cost-cutting efforts we sold our former airplane for $2092 and recorded gain of $1342 Finally we

incurred legal and other expenses of $1418 related to the proxy contest with Costa Brava Partnership III L.P

during the second quarter of 2008

Accrued restructuring obligations of $-0- and $535 are included in other current liabilities in the

accompanying balance sheets as of November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 respectively

17 Contingencies

We are involved in various claims and actions including environmental matters which arise in the normal

course of business Although the final outcome of these matters cannot be determined based on the facts

presently known it is our opinion that the final resolution of these matters will not have material adverse effect

on our financial position or future results of operations

18 Leases Lease Guarantees and Loan Guarantees

Leases

We lease land and buildings under operating leases that are used in the operation of our Company-owned

retail stores as well as in the operation of independent licensee BFD stores Our decision to exercise renewal

options is primarily dependent on the level of business conducted at the location and the profitability thereof

Some store leases contain contingent rental provisions based upon sales volume Additionally we lease

showroom space
from IHFC which is priced at what we believe to be market rate Lease terms range from one

to 15 years
and generally have renewal options of between five and 15 years

The following schedule shows

future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having remaining terms in excess of one

year as of November 27 2010

2011 $17033

2012 16163

2013 14384

2014 10981

2015 7386

Thereafter 14377

$80324
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Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

In thousands except share and per share data

Lease
expense was $16575 $15598 and $13340 for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

In addition to subleasing certain of these properties we own retail real estate which we in turn lease to

licensee operators of BED stores The following schedule shows minimum future rental income related to pass-

through rental
expense on subleased property as well as rental income on real estate owned by Bassett excluding

subleases based on percentage of sales

2011 4339

2012 4486

2013 4060

2014 3277

2015 2444

Thereafter 1542

$20148

Real estate expense including lease costs depreciation insurance and taxes net of rental income was

$429 in 2010 $434 in 2009 and $1487 in 2008 and is reflected in other expense net in the accompanying

consolidated statements of operations

Guarantees

As part of the strategy for our store program we have guaranteed certain lease obligations and real estate

loan obligations of licensee operators Lease guarantees range from one to ten years We were contingently liable

under licensee lease obligation guarantees in the amount of $5856 and $9822 at November 27 2010 and

November 28 2009 respectively

We have also guaranteed loans of certain of our BED dealers to finance initial inventory packages for those

stores Loan guarantees have three year terms are collateralized by the inventory and generally carry personal

guarantee of the independent dealer The total contingent liability with respect to these loan guarantees as of

November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 was $2296 and $4998 respectively

In the event of default by an independent dealer under the guaranteed lease or loan we believe that the risk

of loss is mitigated through combination of options that include but are not limited to arranging for

replacement dealer liquidating the collateral and pursuing payment under the personal guarantees of the

independent dealer The proceeds of the above options are estimated to cover the maximum amount of our future

payments under the guarantee obligations net of reserves The fair value of guarantees at November 27 2010

and November 28 2009 were $2304 and $3366 respectively and are recorded in accrued liabilities and other

long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets The inputs into this fair value estimate

reflect our market assumptions and are not observable Consequently the inputs are considered to be Level as

specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures See Note
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19 Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted loss per share

2010 2009 2008

Numerator

Net loss 2002 22699 40355

Denominator

Denominator for basic loss per shareweighted average

shares 11459257 11395789 11663857

Effect of dilutive securities

Denominator for diluted loss per shareweighted average

shares and assumed conversions 11459257 11395789 11663857

Basic loss per share

Net loss per sharebasic 0.17 1.99 3.46

Diluted loss per share

Net loss per sharediluted 0.17 1.99 3.46

Options to purchase 1009514 1047638 and 1231638 shares of common stock in fiscal 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the effect of

including the options in the computation would have been anti-dilutive

20 Segment Information

We have strategically aligned our business into three reportable segments as defined in ASC 280 Segment

Reporting and as described below

Wholesale The wholesale home furnishings segment is involved principally in the design

manufacture sourcing sale and distribution of furniture products to network of Bassett stores

licensee-owned stores and Company-owned retail stores and independent furniture retailers Our

wholesale segment includes our wood and upholstery operations as well as all corporate selling

general and administrative expenses including those corporate expenses related to both Company- and

licensee-owned stores

RetailCompany-owned Stores Our retail segment consists of Company-owned stores and includes

the revenues expenses assets and liabilities including real estate and capital expenditures directly

related to these stores

Investments and Real Estate Our investments and real estate segment consists of our investments in

the Alternative Asset Fund marketable securities investments distributions in excess of affiliate

earnings primarily IHFC and retail real estate related to licensee stores Our equity investment in

IHFC is not included in the identifiable assets of this segment since it has negative book value and is

therefore included in the long-term liabilities section of our consolidated balance sheet See Note 11 for

further discussion of IHFC

Inter-Company net sales elimination represents the elimination of wholesale sales to our Company-owned

stores Inter-company income elimination represents the embedded wholesale profit in the Company-owned store

inventory that has not been realized These profits will be recorded when merchandise is delivered to the retail

consumer
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The following table presents segment information for each of the last three fiscal years

2010 2009 2008

Net Sales

Wholesale $176255 $179534 $242094

Retail 122241 105378 97176

Inter-company elimination 63242 52190 50972

Consolidated $235254 $232722 $288298

Income loss from Operations

Wholesale 2431 9100 3105
Retail 7387 8131 10306

Inter-company elimination 269 1077 35
Income from CDSOA 488 1627 2122

Restructuring asset impairment charges and unusual gains net

Wholesale 2028 2446
Retail 959 624

Proxy defense costs 1418
Lease exit costs 2434 642

Consolidated loss from operations 4199 19948 16454

Depreciation and Amortization

Wholesale 1670 2633 4008

Retail 3095 2730 2383

Investments/real estate 1201 1241 1698

Consolidated 5966 6604 8089

Capital Expenditures

Wholesale 515 486 893

Retail 1498 608 3809

Investments/real estate 858

Consolidated 2013 1096 5560

Identifiable Assets

Wholesale 95957 $119475 $126619

Retail 58736 53030 53775

Investments/real estate 42624 43724 64648

Consolidated $197317 $216229 $245042

breakdown of wholesale sales by product category for each of the last three fiscal years is provided

below

2010 2009 2008

Wood 44% 50% 54%

Upholstery 56% 50% 46%

100% 100% 100%

61



Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

In thousands except share and per share data

21 Quarterly Results of Operations unaudited

2010

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

52891 $57845 $58527 $65991

25743 28437 26613 31895

1692 17 2368 1941

0.15 0.01 0.21 0.17

0.15 0.01 0.21 0.17

2009

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Net sales 57811 $57718 $57670 $59523

Gross profit 24143 25033 25986 27678

Net income loss 11963 9856 3446 2566

Basic earnings loss per share 1.05 0.87 0.30 0.22

Diluted earnings loss per share 1.05 0.87 0.30 0.22

All quarters presented above for 2010 and 2009 consist of 13 week fiscal periods

Includes $488 of income associated with the Continued Dumping Subsidy Offset Act See Note 16 for

further details

Includes $1255 charge for the other than temporary impairment of our marketable securities portfolio See

Note for further details See Note regarding the effects of additional charges pertaining to restatement

of the quarter ended February 28 2009

Includes $1068 of impairment charges and lease exit charges of $285 related to the closure of two retail

stores and the retail office See Note 16 for further details

Includes $1777 of lease exit costs associated with the closure of two retail stores See note 16 for further

details

Includes $1067 of impairment severance and other restructuring costs associated with the closure of our

fiberboard manufacturing facility $372 of additional lease termination costs resulting from revisions to

previous estimates $532 charge related to the impairment of goodwill and $1627 of income associated

with the Continued Dumping Subsidy Offset Act See Notes and 16 for further details

Net sales

Gross profit

Net income loss

Basic earnings loss per share

Diluted earnings loss per share
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
In thousands except share and per share data

The selected financial data set forth below for the fiscal years indicated were derived from our audited

consolidated financial statements The information should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial

statements including the notes thereto and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations appearing elsewhere in or incorporated by reference into this report

Net sales

Cost of sales

Operating loss

Other income loss net

Income loss before income taxes

Income tax expense benefit

Net income loss

Diluted earnings loss per share

Cash dividends declared

Cash dividends per share

Total assets

Long-term debt

Current ratio

Book value per share

Weighted average number of shares

2010 2009 2008 2007

dollar amounts in thousands except for per share data

235254 232722 288298

122566 129882 173399

4l99l 19948l 16454l
1991 4505 6956

2208 24453 23410
206 1754 16945

2002 22699 40355
0.17 1.99 3.46

17464

1.50

245042

40346

2.34 to

11.40

11663857

216229

31953

2.42 to

9.63

11395789

See Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements related to restructuring and asset impairment charges recorded

in 2009 and 2008 See also Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements with respect to funds received from the

Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act in 2010 2009 and 2008

197317

4295

1.48 to

9.20

11459257

295384

195001

19916
5947

13969
4059
9910
0.84

9454

0.80

310703

28850

1.96 to
16.50

11810055

2006

328214

225319

466
692
6455

1026

5429

0.46

9449

0.80

310223

23522

2.47 to

18.24

11808053
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VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
In thousands

Balance Additions Charged

Beginning of to Cost and Balance End

Period Expenses Deductions Other of Period

For the Year Ended November 29 2008

Reserve deducted from assets to which it

applies

Allowance for doubtful accounts 7661 9869 $5896 $36472 7987

Notes receivable valuation

reserves 2617 1900 350 24292 6596

Lease/Loan guarantee reserves 428 527 168 12182 2005

Restructuring reserve 132 132

Lease exit costs 2162 1113 950 2325

Income tax valuation allowance 1047 $23383 $24430

For the Year Ended November 28 2009

Reserve deducted from assets to which it

applies

Allowance for doubtful accounts 7987 8908 $6138 $10757

Notes receivable valuation

reserves 6596 5967 $36l3 8950

Lease/Loan guarantee reserves 2005 2834 $l473 3366

Restructuring reserve 902 367 535

Lease exit costs 2325 2882 $l708 3499

Income tax valuation allowance $24430 9553 9803 $33003

For the Year Ended November 27 2010

Reserve deducted from assets to which it

applies

Allowance for doubtful accounts.. $10757 4671 $8062 7366

Notes receivable valuation

reserves 8950 1825 $4027 6748

Lease/Loan guarantee reserves 3366 1407 $2469 2304

Restructuring reserve 535 535

Lease exit costs 3499 836 $l488 2847

Income tax valuation allowance $33003 2962 84 13 $36806

Deductions are for the purpose for which the reserve was created

Represents reclass of the allowance for doubtful accounts to notes receivable valuation reserves and lease/

loan guarantee reserves

Represents change in reserve recorded as part of accumulated other comprehensive income loss
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STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Presented below is line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total stockholder

return on the Companys Common Stock against the cumulative total return of the Standard Poors 500 Index and

the Companys peer group The Companys peer group consists of Chromcraft Revington Inc Ethan Allen

Interiors Inc Flexsteel Industries Inc Furniture Brands International Inc Haverty Furniture Companies Inc

Hooker Furniture Corporation La-Z Boy Incorporated and Stanley Furniture Company Inc This graph assumes

that $100 was invested on November 26 2005 in the Companys Common Stock the SP Index and the one peer

group
and that any dividends paid were invested
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Managements Report of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report our principal executive officer and principal

financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures Disclosure

Controls Disclosure Controls as defined in Rule 13a-15e of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

the Exchange Act are procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required to be

disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act such as this Annual Report is recorded processed

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and

forms Disclosure Controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that such information is accumulated

and communicated to our management including the CEO and CAO as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosure Our management including the CEO and CAO does not expect that our Disclosure

Controls will prevent all error and all fraud control system no matter how well conceived and operated can

provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system are met Further the design

of control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be

considered relative to their costs Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls

can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if any within the company have been

detected These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that

breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake The design of any system of controls also is based in part

upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and there can be no assurance that any design will

succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions

Based upon their controls evaluation our CEO and CAO have concluded that our Disclosure Controls are

effective at reasonable assurance level

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting in

accordance with Exchange Act Rule 13a-15 With the participation of our CEO and CAO our management

conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of November 27

2010 based on the criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation management concluded that our

internal control over financial reporting was effective as of November 27 2010 based on those criteria control

system no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that the

objectives of the control system are met Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of

controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if any within the Company
have been detected

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Companys registered public accounting firm

regarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation by the

Companys registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange

Commission that permit the Company to provide only managements report in this annual report

Bassett Furniture Industries Inc

Bassett Virginia

February 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Bassett Furniture Industries

Incorporated and subsidiaries as of November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 and the related consolidated

statements of operations shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

November 27 2010 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15a
These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility

is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits The financial statements

of International Home Furnishings Center Inc corporation in which the Company has 47% interest have

been audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us and our opinion on the consolidated

financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts included for International Home Furnishings Center Inc

is based solely on the report of the other auditors In the consolidated financial statements the Companys

investment in International Home Furnishings Center Inc is stated at $7356000 and $l0954000

respectively at November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 and the Companys equity in the net income of

International Home Furnishings Center Inc is stated at $4535000 $4705000 and $6424000 for each of the

three years in the period ended November 27 2010

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement We were not engaged to perform an

audit of the Companys internal control over financial reporting Our audits included consideration of internal

control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal

control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits and the report of other auditors provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion based on our audits and the report of other auditors the financial statements referred to

above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial position of Bassett Furniture Industries

Incorporated and subsidiaries at November 27 2010 and November 28 2009 and the consolidated results of

their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended November 27 2010 in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial

statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole presents fairly

in all material respects the information set forth therein

w7LLP
Greensboro North Carolina

February 2011
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